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CORPORATE PROFILE

NG

Al

Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 5 November 2008. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the operation of department stores and
community shopping malls in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

The Group is one of the long established Shenzhen-based
department store chains. Targeting the mid-market
segment, it runs its department stores under the “% % £ %,
“Shirble Plaza” and “ ,:ﬁ%f;;?ﬁ?" brands. As of 31 December
2024, the Group operated and/or managed 14 department
stores, nine of which are located in Shenzhen, three in
Shanwei, one in Meizhou City and one in Changsha, with
a total gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 242,842
sg.m, of which 38.0% are the self-owned properties.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR

OPERATING RESULTS

R L Ay
REXRK

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

RMB’000

AR®TR

Revenue N

Operating (loss)/profit e (B1R),/ &7

Loss before income tax PRETEEIRIEE

Loss attributable to owners of AREER NERER
the Company

Loss per share for the loss attributable 72 Bl A ATEIGER
to owners of the Company during EEZERER
the year (expressed in RMB per share) (AERARETIE)
- Basic and diluted —-ERREE

200,295 190,666 191,576 230,118 481,077
(32,143)  (356,338)  (595402)  (398,692) 28,134
(101,258)  (406,504)  (669,263)  (475349)  (43,015)

(33,764)  (340,982) (556,117) (438,043) (75,116)

(0.01) (0.14) 0.22) 0.18) 0.03)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

£E  BfERER

At 31 December

RMB’000 R12A31R
ARBTR 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Total assets BEE 2,169,516 2,342,421 2899686 3,971,288 4,248,525
Total liabilities BaE 1,418,755 1,556,574 1,783,175 2293414 2,129,709
Total equity LR 750,761 785,847 1,116,511 1,677,874 2,118,816
SEGMENT RESULTS D EPELE
Year ended 31 December 2024 Year ended 31 December 2023
220245128310 ILEE HZ2023F12A31BIHERE
Department Department
store store
business Others Group business Others Group
BEEEE Hitr AEE  BEEEH Efty T5E
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETRH
Revenue WA 200,295 - 200,295 190,666 - 190,666
Operating (loss)/profit TE(ER) /5 (17,419) (14,724) (32,143) 3,124 (359,462)  (356,338)
Loss before income tax BREERAEE (65,688) (35,570)  (101,258) (40,659)  (365,845)  (406,504)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EBR)/ & (65,746) 31,082 (33,764) (32,737)  (317,672)  (350,400)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
LR S

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

WA REMEE LA
RMB (million) M Revenue
AR%E (B8 WA
I Other Operating
Revenue
200.3 190.7 H b8 & A
29.9
2024 2023
In percentage 0 Revenue
LABE S A WA
I Other Operating
Revenue
Hgg A

2024 2023

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  m&E & &% (FFE) AR A7  ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE#&E



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

ER|E

During the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “FY2024”),
the Chinese economy maintained a modest growth,
but the domestic consumption market continued to
face significant challenges amid changing consumer
preferences, increasing competition from the e-commerce
platforms and the pressure on the profit margin due to
the rising operational costs and price-sensitivity amongst
the customers. Despite these headwinds, the domestic
consumption market has shown resilience by adapting the
changing market dynamics through the cost optimisation,
domestic sourcing and enhanced customer engagement
strategies.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China
(“NBS”), the GDP of China in the FY2024 amounted to
RMB134.9 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 5% as compared to 2023. The national consumer price
index (“CPI”) in December 2024 was 0.5% higher year-
on-year, and CPIl in December 2023 remained constant
year-on-year. The amount of the total retail sales of the
consumer goods in the FY2024 in China increased by 3.5%
year-on-year, as compare to an increase of 7.2% in the
year ended 31 December 2023 (the “FY2023").

During the FY2024, the Group continued to explore the
consumer market and focus on the community business
strategy with the goal of “small but beautiful, small but
refined”. The Group also introduced a new brand of
young lifestyle to maintain its competitiveness. Through
the collaboration among the community, businesses
and residents, the Group promoted targeted business
development and community focused marketing initiatives.
The mutual benefit and win-win situation with the
community have emerged as the key drivers of the Group’s
growth and provide fascinating opportunities for the
sustainable business development.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 E 5
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRE®ME

alln

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the FY2024, the Group recorded the revenue of
RMB200.3 million (FY2023: RMB190.7 million). Loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the FY2024
amounted to RMB33.8 million (FY2023: RMB341.0 million).
With the continuous development of the social events and
activities in the evening, the Group does not only continue
to operate a one-stop shopping mall concept, but during
the non-conventional business hours. Some convenient
stores, gyms, restaurants and pharmacies are open 24
hours a day to achieve a 24-hour community business
ecosystem that benefits the consumers and taps the value
of night-time consumption to meet the demand of the
middle class population in the PRC for food, merchandise
and services.

Furthermore, online platforms and membership loyal
programs are changing the retail industry crucially for the
consumers seeking goods and services online and bulk
purchase becomes a habit after pandemic. The Group
uses different online platforms to promote and stimulate
consumers’ interest and continue to provide quality goods
and services to increase the customer patronage and
enhance the shopping experience to attract and retain new
customers.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group operated and/or
managed 14 department stores with a total gross floor area
of 242,841.9 sg.m., of which 38.0% are the self-owned
properties.

With the economic downside risk relating to the highly
leveraged real estate sector, the Group has suspended
property investments and implemented proactive measures
to mitigate the negative impact and strengthen the
business resilience on the related business activities.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Overall, the Group remains positive in its business
prospects and is committed to improving its operations and
services to meet customer needs, and thereby increases
the return of investment of the Group as a whole.

Looking ahead, the Group will consolidate its resources,
enhance its market position and increase the operational
efficiency to meet the diverse needs of consumers and
continue to explore future market opportunities.

6 SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS —r}
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FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt %5 [0

The operating results of the Group for the FY2024 are REE2024F F 8 REE B M E R S
presented in two reportable operating segments, namely DEEY Bl (B EEER RO/ HMOBE
(a) department store business and (b) others including EHEEFEMASEER  FTEBIEEIH
property business and unallocated items, comprising EFEHT o THm Lot hENAKEEFZR
mainly head office overheads. The following discussions BN SEBDINEEEEEL -

and analyses are based on the Group as a whole and the
operating results of each of the business segments.

(a) The Group (a) A%EH
Revenue of the Group were all contributed from R2024FFHE M2023FEFF » AEE
the department store business for the FY2024 and HNIRAZEHEEEEBER - K2024
the FY2023. Revenue of the Group amounted to FEE - AEERNKRAAARE200.3
RMB200.3 million for the FY2024, representing a BETT - W2023FFEARKE190.7H
slight increase of 5.0%, as compared to RMB190.7 BT E MM IE HN5.0% °

million in the FY2023.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the R2024FFE - KRAIHEAB AE(FEE
FY2024 amounted to RMB33.8 million and for the BAREEIISHEITLK2023FFE A A
FY2023 amounted to RMB341.0 million. R¥341.08&87T °

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 GFE3R% mEE SR (RE) AB A7 SHRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Al

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(b)

EEENmE DN

/2=

PO

Department store business segment (b) BEEXBDE

Set forth below is the segmental information of the
Group’s department store business for the FY2024,

TXFrE AR024FEEAEETEEE
HEE D EER - ER2023F FE B8

together with the comparative figures for the FY2023: ¥
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALFE
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T NG
Revenue WA 200,295 190,666
Other operating revenue H g A 27,150 29,886
Other gains — net HAh s F 58 25,400 57,486
Fair value loss on investment HEMEN AT EBE
properties (139,483) (156,004)
Purchase of and changes FEERBELEE
in inventories (11,571) (6,667)
Employee benefit expenses EEBMNEX (31,800) (27,715)
Depreciation and amortisation WERBHAS
expenses (1,988) (8,198)
Net impairment losses SREEMNRERETE
on financial assets (550) (3,328)
Other operating expenses — net H b S FRE (84,872) (78,002)
Operating (loss)/profit L (), wFl (17,419) 3,124
Finance income BE WA 6,219 9,279
Finance costs A& A AR (54,488) (53,062)
Finance costs — net AP AT RE (48,269) (43,783)
Loss before income tax BRETEBRATEER (65,688) (40,659)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frisfi (M%) & (58) 7,922
Loss for the year FEBR (65,746) (32,737)
SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  #E8 E 51k (58) AR AF  ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 %



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWMRIOW

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) Bt B Rl )
(b) Department store business segment (Continued) (b) BEEXXKEII(EZ)
Revenue WA
Revenue breakdown of the Group’s department store R2024 FFE K2023F F& - AEH
business for the FY2024 and the FY2023 are as BREEEBHWABRMAMAT
follows:
Percentage of
Year ended department store’s
31 December revenue of the Group
HZ12831H LEKEEEE
LHEE WANEDL
2024 2023 2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000 % %
ARBTRT AR®TT
Rental income HEWA 187,505 182,939 93.6 95.9
Direct sales BEHEE 12,328 7,396 6.2 3.9
Commission from EEHERS
concessionaire sales 462 331 0.2 0.2
Total MaEr 200,295 190,666 100.0 100.0

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E3%E  mi@ & Sifk (- AREA

The rental income increased slightly by 2.5% to
RMB187.5 million for the FY2024 from RMB182.9
million for the FY2023. The direct sales increased
significantly by 66.2% to RMB12.3 million for the
FY2024 from RMB7.4 million for the FY2023.

The slight increase in rental income mainly attributable
to the decrease in the vacancy rate of department
store in 2024.

R2024F FE - HEWABARE
187.5B BT * B20283F FEMARK
182.9F BILEMILIN2.5% ° R2024%F
FE EEHEAARKI23BET
Bo023F FEARB7TATE LEE
#IN66.2% °

A WA B 08 02 B R A 2024 F B
EEL TR -

] SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(b)

10

Department store business segment (Continued)
Other operating revenue

The other operating revenue decreased to RMB27.2
million for the FY2024 from RMB29.9 million for the
FY2023. The decrease mainly due to the decrease
in government grant, offset by the increase in
promotion, administration and management income.

Other gains - net

The other gains — net amounted to RMB25.4 million
for the FY2024, as compared to RMB57.5 million
for the FY2023, primarily due to the Group entering
into supplemental agreements of two stores for
rental reduction, and a net gain of RMB37.8 million
recognised in the FY2024 resulting from the decrease
in lease liabilities, as compared to a gain from
write-off of long aging trade and other payables of
RMB25.2 million and a gain from modification of
leases of RMB30.6 million for the FY2023.

Fair value loss on investment properties

The fair value loss on investment properties
decreased to RMB139.5 million for the FY2024 from
RMB156.0 million for the FY2023.

Purchase of and changes in inventories
Purchase of and changes in inventories amounted
to RMB11.6 million for the FY2024, representing an
increase of 73.1%, as compared to RMB6.7 million
for the FY2023, which was in line with the trend in
direct sales.

Employee benefit expenses

The employee benefit expenses increased by 14.8%
from RMB27.7 million for the FY2023 to RMB31.8
million for the FY2024, mainly due to the reversal of
accruals for the FY2023. The Group has undergone a
streamlining process in its human resources structure
to reduce staff costs since previous years.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWMRIOW

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [€ ¥k & e B S (P BR AR

Department store business segment (Continued)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

The depreciation and amortisation expenses
decreased significantly by 37.5% to RMB2.0
million for the FY2024 from RMB3.2 million for the
FY2023, mainly due to that certain assets have been
transferred to investment properties.

Other operating expenses — net

Other operating expenses, which principally
comprised of utility expenses, advertising,
marketing, promotion and related expenses, other
tax expenses, bank charges, exchange differences
and maintenance expenses, increased by 8.8%
to RMB84.9 million for the FY2024 from RMB78.0
million for the FY2023 due to the tax incentives
received from the government in the FY2023, while no
such tax incentives received in the FY2024.

Operating (loss)/profit

As a result of the reasons mentioned above, the
operating loss of the department store business
segment amounted to RMB17.4 million for the
FY2024, as compared to the operating profit of
RMBS3.1 million for the FY2023.

Finance income

Finance income amounted to RMB6.2 million for
the FY2024, as compared to RMB9.3 million for
the FY2023, mainly due to the decrease in interest
income from finance lease and interest income from
bank deposits.

BB &)

(b)

BEEEBIE(E)

WERBHES

PrE K 5B H2023 FFEM AR
3.2H &L N IRH R 1 37.5% £ 2024 F
FENAREK208ETT TEHRNET
BEERTEME -

HiZ e 5 F5E

HMEERY (EEREAREER
X EE - MIBHERE - (R kAR
X HaFREES - BiTkE  ERE
NGB ) M2023FEENARE
78.0B B LI NNB8.8% E 2024 FFEH)
ARM84.90HE T + B A2023FFEH
BITESHIEER » M2024F FE AL
BRI ERBES -

B (EFR) B

AR ELlFRER @ 2024F FEEERES
DK EBEAAREI7TAEE T
2023 4F & [Z M4 &% F A A R #3.1
BET -

BEURA

BR2023F FEMARKIZIEE LA
b 2024 F FEMBMEWMABARE
6.2EHEBIL TEMNMEREMETE
SRR B AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EEENmE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) BB R &)
(b) Department store business segment (Continued) (b) BEEXEKDE(E)
Finance costs AELE

Finance costs increased by 2.6% to RMB54.5 million
for the FY2024, as compared to RMB53.1 million for
the FY2023, mainly due to the increase in the interest
expenses on operating leases as the lessee and the
increase in interest expenses on bank loans.

Income tax (expenses)/credit
Income tax expenses amount to RMBO.1 million for
the FY2024, as compared to income tax credit of
RMB7.9 million for the FY2023.

Loss for the year

As a result of the aforementioned, loss attributable to
the department store business segment amounted to
RMB65.7 million for the FY2024, as compared to the

FEEE

ER EX ATl - 2024F FE B ERERS
DESEE BB A ARKES.TEBEIL 0
2023 F FEBIBRAIAARKITES

loss of RMB32.7 million for the FY2023. JC ©

(c) Others segment
Others represent mainly property business and
unallocated items including directors emoluments,
staff costs and operating expenses incurred for
headquarter or administrative purposes which were
not directly attributable to department store business
segment. Such gains amounted to RMB32.0 million
for the FY2024, as compared to the losses amounted
to RMB317.7 million for the FY2023, mainly due to
the impairment loss on financial assets of RMB201.2

(c) HfttnI
Hih X ZHEEHEEBH R ARHAEIEE
(BREEEHE
THEMMEAMKEERY)  ETEH
EEBRBEEEBDIF - 82023F F
EAAREIN7TTAB TWEEMEL
R2024FFE -
BEL TEMR2023FEESHEE
REERBAARE201 288 T MFEN
HREBEAEARKGI0EET

million and impairment loss on prepayments of
RMB63.0 million for the FY2023.

12
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWMRIOW

DIVIDEND

The Board has decided not to recommend any final
dividend for the FY2024 (FY2023: nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits amounted to
RMB55.4 million, representing a decrease of 17.6% from
RMBG67.2 million as of 31 December 2023. The cash and
cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits, which were
in RMB and Hong Kong dollars, were deposited with banks
in the PRC and Hong Kong for interest income.

Borrowings

The Group had long-term and short-term borrowings of
RMB507.3 million and RMB50.8 million, respectively as of
31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: long-term and
short-term borrowings of RMB520.3 million and RMB36.2
million, respectively), mainly representing the secured
bank borrowing denominated in RMB secured by the
charge of properties in the PRC. The gearing ratio, which
is calculated by the Group’s total borrowings divided by its
shareholders equity, was 74.3% as of 31 December 2024
(31 December 2023: 70.8%).

Net current liabilities and net assets

The net current liabilities of the Group as of 31 December
2024 were RMB236.2 million (31 December 2023:
RMB427.2 million). The net assets of the Group as of
31 December 2024 decreased to RMB750.8 million (31
December 2023: 785.8 million).

Foreign exchange exposure

The business operation of the Group is primarily in the PRC
with most of its transactions settled in RMB. Certain of the
Group’s cash and bank balances are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. For the FY2024, the Group recorded a net
foreign exchange gain of RMB1.5 million (FY2023: RMB5.1
million). The Group has not used any forward contracts,
currency borrowings or other means to hedge its foreign
Currency exposure.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 /354 = m Sifs (hF) 48
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

alln

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES (continued)

Employees and remuneration policy

As of 31 December 2024, the total number of employees of
the Group was 199 (31 December 2023: 216). The Group’s
remuneration policy is determined with reference to
market conditions and the performance, qualifications and
experience of individual employees. The Company has also
introduced the key performance indicators assessment
scheme to boost performance and operational efficiency.

Contingent liabilities

Certain suppliers and an ex-employee have commenced
legal proceedings in the PRC against the Group in respect
of disputes over contract terms and employment contract
terms. As of 31 December 2024, the legal proceedings are
ongoing. The Group has made an accumulated provision
of approximately RMB764,000 (31 December 20283:
RMB2,765,000) which the Directors believe is adequate
to cover the amounts, if any, payable in respect of these
claims.

Material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
There were no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries for the FY2024.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

No significant events have taken place subsequent to 31
December 2024 and up to the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENREREBAER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong, Chairlady

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong, aged 60, was appointed as a
non- executive Director on 26 May 2020 and a Chairlady
of the Board on 26 September 2021. Ms. HUANG was
re-designated as an executive Director on 10 April 2024.
Ms. HUANG has more than 15 years of experience in
administrative and business matters. Ms. HUANG is
responsible for the formulation of the overall business
development strategy of the Group. Ms. HUANG is the
spouse of the late Mr. YANG Xiangbo, the founder of the
Group, and the mother of Mr. YANG Ti Wei, an executive
Director.

Mr. YANG Ti Wei, Deputy Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Mr. YANG Ti Wei, aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer on 7 September 2013
and re-designated from the Co-Chairman of the Board to
the Deputy Chairman of the Board on 26 September 2021.
Mr. YANG joined the Group in June 2009 as the executive
vice president of the Group. He is principally responsible
for providing overall management and operational
directions of the Group. Mr. YANG is also a director of
Shirble Department Store (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shirble
Department Store (Hong Kong)”), Shirble Department
Store Investment Limited (“Shirble Hong Kong”),
Cosmic Favour Limited, Baotong (BVI) Company Limited,
Baotong E-commence (Hong Kong) Company Limited and
Lawbo Investment Limited, and a legal representative of
Shanwei Shirble Department Store Co., Ltd., Luhe Shirble
Department Store Co., Ltd. and Lufeng Shirble Department
Store Co., Ltd. Mr. YANG obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in business management from the University of Surrey in
England in 2010. Mr. YANG is the son of Ms. HUANG Xue
Rong, the Chairlady of the Board.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Fengliang, Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee

Mr. CHEN Fengliang, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2010.
Mr. CHEN obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
from the Inner Mongolia University in 1995. From 1995
to 1998, Mr. CHEN was a planning officer in the planning
department of the Yike Zhao League branch of The
Agricultural Bank of China. From 1998 to 2001, Mr. CHEN
studied at the Graduate School of the People’s Bank of
China and obtained a master’s degree in economics in
2001. From 2001 to 2016, Mr. CHEN was the secretary to
the president’s office of China Eagle Securities Company
Limited, the manager of risk control of China Eagle Asset
Management Company Limited, the director of investment
of Shanghai Sino-V Asset Management Company
Limited and the vice general manager of the business
development department of Chinalion Securities Co., Ltd..
Currently, Mr. CHEN is the general manager of Shenzhen
Dezhonghengzheng Investment Company Limited.

Mr. JIANG Hongkai, Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Mr. JIANG Hongkai, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2010. Mr.
JIANG obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in chemistry
from South China Normal School in 1986. From 1986 to
1994, Mr. JIANG was a high school teacher. In 1994, Mr.
JIANG became qualified as a lawyer in China after passing
an examination required for admission as a PRC lawyer.
From 1994 to 2003, Mr. JIANG worked as a lawyer in
Guangdong Jihe Law Firm. Since 2003, Mr. JIANG has
been working as a lawyer in the King & Capital (Shenzhen)
Law Firm (formerly known as the Shenzhen branch of King
& Capital Law Firm).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSHEERAR

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong, Chairperson of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee

Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong, aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 March 2021.
Mr. TSANG is a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers
in Hong Kong and China and has over 30 years of
experience in auditing and providing support for initial
public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. TSANG
received a bachelor degree in business administration
from Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. TSANG is an independent non-executive
director of the following companies which are listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”): China Merchants China
Direct Investments Limited (stock code: 00133), Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Limited (stock code:
00460) and TK Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
02283). Mr. TSANG is an independent director of HUYA
Inc (stock code: HUYA), a company listed on the New York
Stock Exchange. Mr. TSANG was an independent non-
executive director of CA Cultural Technology Group Limited
(stock code: 01566) from November 2014 to November
2022, the shares of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHOW Chun Pong, aged 46, was appointed as
chief financial officer, company secretary and authorised
representative of the Company on 1 September 2022. Mr.
CHOW joined the Group in April 2010. He is responsible
for overseeing the financial and compliance matters of
the Group. Mr. CHOW received a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified for Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the report on the affairs
of the Company, together with the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report, for the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 November 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, (Cap. 22) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
are department store operations and property development
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 are set forth in the consolidated income statement on
page 56 of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has decided not to recommend any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties during the
year are set forth in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set forth in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s authorised and issued share
capital as of 31 December 2024 are set forth in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

As of 31 December 2024, distributable reserves of the
Company included the Company’s accumulated loss in
the amount of RMB671.1 million and the Company’s share
premium in the amount of RMB751.0 million. Details of the
movements in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set forth in
notes 27 to 28 to the consolidated financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donations for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”)
and the laws of the Cayman Islands do not impose any
limitations on such rights.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
and Hong Kong are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes. Particulars of these
retirement plans are set forth in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong (Chairlady)

Mr. YANG Ti Wei (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Fengliang

Mr. JIANG Hongkai

Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-
election of such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any
Director appointed pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles
shall not be taken into account in determining which
particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the article 84 of the Articles, Mr. JIANG
Hongkai and Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong will retire by rotation.
All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

20 SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED REBHE

EEEHE

BE
REEAREEAREAE  ARAFHES
KREWT :

HITES :
BERXE(ETEXL)
R (B ERTHARE)

BIHHTES
BRI 5E 52
TR
EE P LS

RIFERAMAESQ)E  EFHETHLE
HREEEANALAEFTNEREZERE =
RFIEINBTEZTSF - BEZTSZEN
ERBEREZRNENEENTEHESHES
TREERRERAGL  XANZAGLER

B MEEEFEZEIUENRTESTSR

UAEMEENEREEZARA NEBRRE
FAGIL TEEREREE - REEEMA
AIESQGRZENENESE  EETHES
RO ETEFRESARE - NMEEIEERA -

REERE ZH&E'J%8 41 REERREFAS
b EBER=0 - MEF(HEKBELIF=2
=3 H'JFEE—% TETD ECE’ Z Z8HA)
AmESE HEERE %2 DB =ZFRK
%@EK FR-R é: QT%E,\

RIBZRMAESAE  TERMEERGEN

TERBESE 2BREESFTTRERL
FRERNEERRBFAS LEIERBEEL -

Pelle (RE) BFEAF ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [E 4



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong, the executive Director, has entered
into a service agreement for an executive Director with
the Company for a term of three years commenced from
10 April 2024. Ms HUANG will be entitled to an annual
director’s fee of HK$780,000.

Mr. YANG Ti Wei, the executive Director, has entered
into a service agreement for an executive Director with
the Company for a term of three years commenced from
7 September 2022. During this period, Mr. YANG will be
entitled to an annual director’s fee of HK$600,000.

Mr. CHEN Fengliang and Mr. JIANG Hongkai, the
independent non-executive Directors, have signed letters
of appointment for a term of three years commenced from
18 June 2023. The annual director’s fee of each of Mr.
CHEN Fengliang and Mr. JIANG Hongkai was adjusted to
HK$180,000 effective from 1 February 2024 which was
approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board.
The other independent non-executive Director Mr. TSANG
Wah Kwong has signed letter of appointment for a term
of three years commenced from 30 March 2024 and his
annual director’s fee is HK$300,000.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered
or has proposed to enter into any service agreements with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (other than contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive in the shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company, the underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of the associated
corporations of the Company (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); (b) entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) set forth in Appendix C3 to
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(@) Long positions in the Shares

EEEHE

EENBESITRAERERTR
HEBEZENRS - HERG K
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BEXVEBET7 K8 ER B AMA RN A R P (B IE
BIEFES LSRG NZER - EATiEE
RWREREESELAE)  (b)ARRABIRE
BENMEEIRHEI521F BB FHELMA
FC)BEBEEFLBAEEMN EMHRA(TLEHR
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(a) REHHEFE

Number of Percentage of

Name of directors Capacity Note Shares shareholding
EEnE 514 Bt & R EE BERES
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong Beneficial owner 8,324,000 0.33%
BEEAX L EnBEEA

Administrator 1,374,167,500 55.08%

BB A
Mr. YANG Ti Wei Beneficial owner 2,490,000 0.09%
RS E EmEEA
Note: B EE -

(1) Ms. HUANG Xue Rong has been appointed as the
administrator of the estate of Mr. YANG Xiangbo,
which include all the issued share capital of Xiang
Rong Investment Limited (“Xiang Rong”). Xiang
Rong owns the entire issued share capital of Shirble
Department Store Limited (“Shirble BVI”). As such,
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong is deemed to be interested in
the 1,374,167,500 Shares held by Shirble BVI.

22 SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

(1) ESERTEEZEARGHETLEN
BEEEIE A AP EHEXang Rong
Investment Limited ([ Xiang Rong |)
M2 E #EITRA o Xiang Rong #
& Shirble Department Store Limited
([ Shirble BVI ] ) #) 2 & 2 % 17 %
AeRAY  EERLZTHEEEHEER
Shirble BVI# A 1,374,167,500% % {5
KR ©

HEOEER (hE) BRAT ANNUAL REPORT 2024 G #E



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(continued)

(b)
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Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

EERBRSTHRAEREQATR
HEBEIENRG - HERAO R
BENERZRAE @)

REBEEROTNER

Number of
shares of
Name of associated associated Percentage of
Name of director corporations Capacity Note corporation shareholding
AR
Bxps HEEE A E27) et RO EE FREDL
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong  Shirble BVI Administrator 1 50,000 100%
BSAXT R EBVI EEA
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong  Xiang Rong Administrator 1 100 100%
e Xiang Rong I A
Note: Mtz -

(1) Ms. HUANG Xue Rong has been appointed as the
administrator of the estate of Mr. YANG Xiangbo,
which include all the issued share capital of Xiang
Rong. Xiang Rong owns the entire issued share capital
of Shirble BVI.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, to
the knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in any
of the Shares, the underlying Share and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was
required to be (a) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or (c) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As of 31 December 2024, the following persons (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed to have interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares as notified to the Company pursuant
to Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:

EEEHE

FERRRAQF KRG KAEER
DR KRR

M2024FE12A31H M FAL(ARAESE
ST A BFRIN) AR R B R A% 17D sk AR 8
B& 1D o A S R AR R E 5 R
EIEPIEXVEFE 2R E3N BANS AR R K
AR BIREE S KA E KD 33615 BET
MEEMARNERSAR

Long positions in the Shares gvil sl of

Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity Note Shares shareholding
HE B4 M &t RGEE BERES
Shirble BVI Beneficial Owner 1 1,374,167,500 55.08%
PR EBVI EmRBEAA
Xiang Rong Interest in a controlled corporation 1 1,374,167,500 55.08%
Xiang Rong REHDEE e
Mr. HAO Jian Min Beneficial Owner 374,250,000 15.00%
MR EE EnlAA
Note: GG

(1)  The 1,374,167,500 Shares were held by Shirble BVI, which
was wholly owned by Xiang Rong. Ms. HUANG Xue Rong
has been appointed as the administrator of the estate of Mr.
YANG Xiangbo, which include all the issued share capital of
Xiang Rong. According to the SFO, both of Ms. HUANG Xue
Rong and Xiang Rong were deemed to have interests in the
1,374,167,500 Shares held by Shirble BVI.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) or corporation
who had any interests or short positions in the Shares and
the underlying Shares pursuant to Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

24 SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

(1)  BREBVIFE1,374,167,500 & B 15 + 5%
 BVIfd Xiang Rong Investment®= & A
BEERLITCEZTABHEREENEET
A - Ef B fEXiang RongFT B B # 17 &
AN o IRIBFEF R EAE KA ETEZ T kXiang
Rong Investmentd # 1% & % B 5% E BVIFT
1,374,167, ,500/% A% {5 B iz ©

Br ECPTIREE SN - BiE2024F12A31H -
BV TABEMEMAT(EESHIARAH
BITHABRRAIN) SOEBR D KR HD

HHEMREES MAERNEXVEE2RE
3HEBAFEARAT  HARRARIEFS K
B &0 55 336 1A 17 B SR it A Ay s ok

S A
KB o

HEOEER (hE) BRAT ANNUAL REPORT 2024 G #E



DIRECTORS’ REPORT 7

EERHE Y

REMUNERATION POLICY

The employees’ and Directors’ remuneration is determined
with reference to salaries paid by comparable companies,
experience, responsibilities and performance of the
Group, including but not limited to fees, salaries, housing
allowances, other allowances, benefits in kind or bonuses.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of
the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set forth in
notes 10 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As of 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business, which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
5 November 2010 (the “Prospectus”), the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus) and the then
executive Directors (collectively, the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the
Company with effect from the listing date. The Covenantors
have provided the Group with written confirmations
that they and their associates (other than members of
the Group) have fully complied with the deed of non-
competition for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted
an annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with
the deed of non-competition, the options, the pre-emptive
rights or first rights of refusals provided by the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus) on their
existing or future competing business.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and its Associated Corporations” above,
at no time during the year was the Company and any
of its subsidiaries of the Company and its associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executive or any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any
other body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together
were 23.3% and 37.3%, respectively of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases and cost of rendering of services
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five
largest suppliers taken together were 17.7% and 60.3%,
respectively of the Group’s total purchases and cost of
rendering of services for the year.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
of the Company which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any interest in the share capital of the
Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers for
the year ended 31 December 2024.
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BORROWINGS

The Group has long-term and short-term borrowings of
RMB507.3 million and RMB50.8 million, respectively as
of 31 December 2024 (20283: long-term and short-term
borrowing of RMB520.3 million and RMB36.2 million,
respectively), mainly representing the secured bank
borrowing denominated in RMB secured by the charge of
properties in the PRC.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions which were
undertaken in the ordinary course of business are set forth
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the connected transactions during the year are
set forth in “Material acquisition and disposal” under the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this report.

EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The transactions stated below are entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business, and constitute
continuing connected transactions exempt from the
reporting, announcement, annual renew and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Lease agreement with Shenzhen Ruizhuo Investment
Development Co., Ltd (“Ruizhuo Investment”)
Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 6 January 2025,
Shirble Chain Store leased from Ruizhuo Investment a
property of 39.02 sg.m. located at Bao’an Road, Luohu
District, Shenzhen, China for the period from 10 January
2025 to 9 January 2028 at a monthly rental of RMB1,678,
i.e. an annual rental of RMB20,136. The property is used
as a tobacco sales counter of the Group’s Hongbao
store. Ruizhuo Investment is owned in equal shares by
Mr. ZHU Bijiang, who is a member of the Group’s senior
management team and Mr. YANG Ti Wei’s cousin, and Ms.
ZHU Bihui, who is also Mr. YANG Ti Wei’s cousin. Hence,
Ruizhuo Investment is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Lease agreement with Shenzhen Ruizhuo Investment
Development Co., Ltd (“Ruizhuo Investment”)
(continued)

The above transaction involves the lease of property from
an entity controlled by Mr. YANG Ti Wei or his associates.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the aggregate
annual rental paid under the lease agreement with Ruizhuo
Investment amounted to RMB20,136 after tax. Since the
transaction (the “Transaction”) under the agreement with
Ruizhuo Investment, as confirmed by the Directors, are on
normal commercial terms and the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the Transaction were on an annual
basis, less than 5% and the annual consideration is less
than HK$3.0 million, it falls within the deminimis threshold
as stipulated under Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules,
the Transaction is exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
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Interest
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
(including the treasury shares) during the year ended 31
December 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and with
in the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable
date prior to the publication of this report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2024 and
at any time up to the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the “Connected Transactions”
and “Exempt continuing connected transactions” sections
above and in notes 35 to the consolidated financial
statements with the section headed “Related Party
Transactions”, no Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
December 2024.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements with the section headed “Related Party
Transactions”, at no time during the year had the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, and the Controlling Shareholders
or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance or any contract of significance for the provision
of services by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

|__ D]

BE  HESEBELEAQATMNES
% 12
HE2024F12A31BIEFE » AR AIHEMT
AWNEARMERE  HEXBELARRME
A LA (BIEEFRARD)

EHARERE
BEAFATSERRBESRN  RAFRE
HENRBRERAITES  ARFRRER
202412 A1 Bt FENEERBERAIT
HERE R A RS R AT R E A — B4
ETRAIMBEARIERE -

EEREARE  ZHHEHNF

BREXTRERS IR [ ERRFERERS ]
BEARGZ A M IEHMRM TR [FBESTR
7 S HARBEEI  EEMERE L2024
12 A31 B L FEARR A EALFIE QR
FIVAUAEEERNEEBERNEMEL
PEEAEREREAER

ERRERREASHNER

Bira MBS mRME3S[FET RS | —HiFT
BEEIN  NFEREMRER ARFHEE
fa] B /8§ 22 =) I 48 B4R AR AR SR S LA R BT B
RIS ERERAH - SRR R EAE
fa] B /8§ 22 B [R) AN 2 ) 2k EL AR fr] B /B8 & B $2 it
RIEHEMEREHL

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 /% mEREER (FE) AR2AF SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED 29



D)t

y /i)

alln

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding
of the Shares. Intending holders and investors of the
Company’s shares are recommended to consult their
professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for,
purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is
emphasised that none of the Company or its Directors or
officers will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on,
or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company resulting
from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of
or dealing in such Shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set forth in the “Corporate Governance Report” section
of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company will be presented in a separate report and
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange on the same day of this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
YANG Ti Wei
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

28 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. In the opinion of
the Directors, throughout the year ended 31 December
2024, the Company has complied with the applicable
principles and code provisions set forth in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules.

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term
success of the Company. Its key responsibilities include
providing leadership and supervision to the Management
with a view to protecting the Shareholders’ interests and
enhancing Shareholders’ long-term value.

The Board has established the Group’s purpose, values
and strategies and was satisfied that they are aligned with
the Group’s culture. All Directors must act with integrity,
lead by example, and promote the desired culture. The
Board should instil and continually reinforce across
the Company’s values of “acting lawfully, ethically and
responsibly”.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board
closely monitored the implementation of corporate
governance practice, risk management and internal control
systems to ensure the corporate value and the Company’s
culture are aligned.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure
that sound and effective internal controls are maintained
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets and review the effectiveness of the
internal control system annually. Procedures have been
designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations,
ensure reliability of financial reporting, identify and manage
potential risks, safeguard assets of the Group and ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overall management and
control of the Company including formulation and approval
of overall strategies, performing corporate governance
duties, material transactions, business plans and other
significant financial and operational matters to enhance
the value to shareholders. The Board has delegated the
responsibilities for day-to-day operations and management
of the Group’s business to the executive director and senior
management of the Company.

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong is the Chairlady of the Group
and Mr. YANG Ti Wei is the Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group. The Chairlady are
responsible for managing and providing leadership to the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
execution of the decisions and strategies approved by the
Board, focusing on business development and managing
day-to-day operations of the Group.

Board size composition and appointment

As of 31 December 2024, the Board comprises one
non-executive Director, namely Ms. HUANG Xue Rong
(Chairlady) and one executive Director, namely Mr. YANG
Ti Wei (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. CHEN Fengliang, Mr. JIANG Hongkai and Mr. TSANG
Wah Kwong. Ms. HUANG Xue Rong is the mother of Mr.
YANG Ti Wei. Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years, but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting pursuant to the Articles.
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Mechanism regarding independent views to the
Board

The Board has implemented different ways to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board (the
“Mechanism”). The Board will conduct annual review on
the implementation and effectiveness of the Mechanism
and the results will be presented to the Board which will
collectively discuss the results and the action plan for
improvement, if appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.

Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. Apart
from the Board meetings, the Board would from time to
time devote separate sessions to consider and review the
Group’s strategy and business activities.

Throughout the year, nine Board meetings were held,
including strategy meetings for several business projects,
meetings discussed matters relating to the re-election of
Directors, as well as reviewed and monitored the financial
and operation performance of the Group. Notice and board
papers were given to all Directors prior to the meetings
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction involving a conflict of interest with a substantial
shareholder or a Director will be considered and dealt
with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Articles contain provisions requiring the Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such
Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

In accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from the three independent non-executive
Directors. The Company considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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Professional Training for directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive,
formal induction to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

The continuous professional development is provided
to the Directors at the Company’s expense to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. From time to time
the Company Secretary updates and provides Directors
with relevant reference material, amendments to Listing
Rules and news releases from the Stock Exchange on
any developments in statutory and regulatory regime to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, all the Directors
have attended 20 hours of training in form of in-house
seminars and regulatory updates or other relevant
reference materials studies.

Board diversity

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on
merit, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), having due regard
for the benefits of diversity. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

On 26 August 2013, the Board has formally approved a
diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) with effective from
1 September 2013. The Nomination Committee will discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity
on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to
the Board for adoption, as set forth in the Diversity Policy of
the Company.
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The members of the Board, who come from a variety of
different backgrounds, have a diverse range of business,
and professional expertise. The table below sets forth an
analysis of the Board’s current composition based on the
measurable objectives:

E=xeXBRETANER  HEZ TN
EBMEZXNE - TRBRBEAGENERY
EESAAMNERETTOM :

Measurable objective Category Number of Director
AEENEE Al EEAH
Gender Male 4
31l EXL
Female 1
g
Age 20-40 1
FHR 41-60 3

Over 60 60JA £

The composition of the Board is well balanced with
each Director having sound knowledge, experience
and expertise relevant to the business operations and
development of the Group. The biographical details of
the Directors are set forth in the “Biographical details of
Directors” section on pages 15 to 17 of this report.

The Board has one female Director, and the Board will
endeavour to at least maintain female representation on the
Board and take opportunities to increase the proportion
of female members over time as and when suitable
candidates are identified. As of 31 December 2024, among
the 199 employees (including senior management) of the
Group, the percentages of male employees and female
employees are 65.3% and 34.7%, respectively. The Board
considers that the Group’s workforce (including senior
management) is diverse in terms of gender.

The Nomination Committee was of the opinion that the
Board consisted of members with diversified gender, age,
cultural and education background, professional/business
experience, skills and knowledge. Further details for the
diversity, including the gender diversity, in the workforce
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set forth in
the 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company.
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Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities and professional indemnity insurances
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.
Permitted indemnity provision is currently inforce and was
inforce throughout the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee comprising
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
TSANG Wah Kwong (Chairperson), Mr. CHEN Fengliang
and Mr. JIANG Hongkai.

Roles and duties

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee has been established to review the
financial reporting process and evaluate the effectiveness
of internal control procedures (including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions) of the Group.

Summary of work done

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit
Committee held two meetings with the management,
external auditor and internal control consultant to discuss
on the Group’s auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters, and to review on the Group’s interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2024 and the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023. with
a recommendation to the Board for approval. The Audit
Committee reviewed and approval of external auditor’s
confirmation of independence, its reports for the Audit
Committee and management representation letters for the
year 2023, with a recommendation to the Board for the
re-appointment of the external auditor at the 2024 annual
general meeting. They also reviewed and considered the
scope of work and fee proposals of the external auditor for
the year 2024; and conducted a high level review of the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group (covering financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions) by
considering the work of the management, including a
review of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, and training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
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The Audit Committee is satisfied that there is an ongoing
process in place for identifying, evaluating and managing
the significant risks faced by the Group, and believes
that in order to manage the risk of failure in achieving the
Company’s goals and objectives to an ultimate extent, the
Group should continuously enhance its internal control
system.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, in conjunction with the external auditor, with
a recommendation to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the external
auditor’s work, its independence and objectivity,
and therefore recommended the Board that
PricewaterhouseCoopers be re-appointed as the
Company’s external auditor for the year 2025 subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee
with a majority of independent non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. CHEN Fengliang (Chairperson), Mr. JIANG
Hongkai and Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong, all of them are the
independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director, namely Mr. YANG Ti Wei.

Roles and duties

The primary responsibilities of Remuneration Committee
are to provide recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management, reviewing and approving matters related
to share scheme and to establish formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure.
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Summary of work done

The Remuneration Committee held three meeting during
the year to discuss on the remuneration package and
the performance assessment of the Directors, and
other remuneration-related matters. All members of the
Remuneration Committee had also deliberated on matters
relating to the salary adjustment of the executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors and members of
senior management.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
details of the annual remuneration of the members of the
senior management (excluding Directors) by band for the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set forth as follows:

TRERBRSE

TEHE
FMEZEeRFRNEITT ZASH  Uil®m
EE N S R IR ATk DA K B At 35 BN 4B
BEH FMEZESE2ENEBNCHNTE
ENBUIRITESULSAEREAENT
SHBEESEEETE -

BECEEATUZTANEXEEASLK &
WEEAB(PMBRIEES)EZE2024F12 831
BItFEHFMESEFBHIDT

Number of individuals

AB
2024 2023
Emolument band < 3 &
HKD500,001 — HKD1,000,000 500,0017%& 72 1,000,0007% 7T 2 3
HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 1 1

Details of the Director’s emoluments are set forth in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee with
a majority of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. JIANG Hongkai (Chairperson) and Mr. TSANG Wah
Kwong, both are the independent non-executive Directors
and one executive Director, namely Mr. YANG Ti Wei.
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Roles and duties

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once
a year. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
the review the composition and diversity of the Board
regularly, to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendation to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
reappointment of Directors. The Nomination Committee
firstly proposes a list of candidates for selection, which
shall then be submitted by the committee to the Board for
review and approval. In respect of the selected candidates,
the Nomination Committee collects their background
information and examine the qualifications in accordance
with the applicable requirements and to state their opinion
and recommendations on appointments to the Board. The
Nomination Committee carries out, if necessary, other
relevant follow up works according to the decisions of or
feedback from the Board.

Summary of work done

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two
meeting and made recommendation to the Board for the
appointment of Ms. HUANG Xue Rong as the executive
Director and the review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board, including the independence of
the three independent non-executive Directors and the
diversity structure of the Board.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Company has received
a written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors of his independence to the Group. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent with respect to the Group.
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FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS AND SRETREERE
ATTENDANCE

The attendance record of each of the Directors for the HZE2024F12A31THIEFERNBITEZNS
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2024 is ESHERHEHEINNT

set forth below:

Number of attendance/Number of meetings

BHLR/BIRY
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
Name of Directors BENZF General Board Committee Committee Committee

eV E3xe ENZRE  §MZEE  R#ZRe

Executive Directors gz

HUANG Xue Rong (Chairlay) BER(FEXT) 11 9/9 N/ATEFR N/ATHE R N/ATHEF
YANG Ti Wei (Deputy Chairman) BEk(ELE) 1/ 9/9 NATEFR 3/3 212
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES

CHEN Fengliang W@% 1/1 9/9 2/2 3/3 N/ATER
JIANG Hongkai MGA 11 9/9 2/2 3/3 22
TSANG Wah Kwong e 11 9/9 2/2 3/3 2/2
DIVIDEND POLICY REBER

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The NEBEEER ' AT COENIRERE - 2
recommendation and declaration of dividends are ZNERRE EREESEMBZIRAER TR {E
subject to the discretion of the Board. The Board shall B EEe/FAZEERAHBENSEREZ -
take into account various factors the Board may deem BIEERIERAANEENTR RTERM KR
relevant, including but not limited to the Group’s actual I RBEESENR - BAE Y TSR G AE -
and expected financial performance, working capital BELERERRE  REBESRR REBAEF
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and MAEDIREBS - UETRRINEREE -

commitments, operations and business strategies, liquidity
position, retained earnings and distributable reserves, etc.,
and market conditions and external factors.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions AR BN EEA AR EFR UL ERA
under the applicable laws and regulations and the Articles. AP EREMES - EEeB T HRE
The Board will review such policy as appropriate from time B RS LR

to time.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in respect of annual and
interim reports, announcements of inside information and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial period, which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group at the
end of the financial year and profit or loss for the financial
year. The Directors have prepared the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Company has used appropriate accounting
policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates, and that all
applicable accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors are not aware that any material or significant
exposures exist, other than as reflected in this report.
The Directors therefore have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
financial statements are continually prepared on a going
concern basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The internal audit department of the Group has reported
its findings and work plan to the Audit Committee twice
in a year, and the Board and the Audit Committee then
reviewed and refined the Group’s material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. The enhancement of the
internal control measures will continue to be monitored
by the internal audit department and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. The internal audit department will
periodically report their review and findings on the internal
controls of the Group to the Audit Committee and the
Board.

The Board, together with the Audit Committee, also
accessed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their
training programs and budget.

Through the internal audit department, the Chief Executive
Officer and the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted
an annual review on the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Based on the results of the internal control review for the
year ended 31 December 2024 and the assessment of the
Audit Committee thereon, no significant deficiency in risk
management and internal controls systems are noted. The
Board therefore is satisfied that appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems have been
maintained for the year ended 31 December 2024.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set forth in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiries with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings as set forth in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2024.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Independent Auditor’s Report issued by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, in
respect of the audit of the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2024 is set forth on pages 46
to 55 of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the auditor’s
remuneration was RMB1.38 million and RMBO0.6 million for
audit services and other assurance services to the Group
respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the procedure/activities
of the Board and the Board Committees and good
communication flow among the Board members,
shareholders and senior management. The appointment
and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board
approval. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairlady
and Chief Executive Officer and is accountable to the Board
for matters relating to the duties of the Directors, such as
by giving advice on corporate governance developments.
All members of the Board have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
also plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its shareholders, including assisting
the Board in discharging its obligations to shareholders
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Mr. CHOW Chun Pong is the Company Secretary.
Mr. CHOW is a full-time employee of the Group. During
the year, Mr. CHOW has complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to the article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, on a one vote per share basis, shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business or resolution specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to nomination of director
Shareholders also have the right to nominate candidates
to be Directors. Following the relevant procedures which
are made available to the Shareholders, Shareholders may
at any time send a notice of nomination setting out the
information required to the Nomination Committee of the
Company. After evaluation, the Nomination Committee
may make recommendation to the Board which will then
evaluate the nomination.

Procedures for which enquiries may be put to the
Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Share
Registrar, MUFG Corporate Markets Pty Limited.
Shareholders and the investment community may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing
to the Company Secretary at the office of the Company
at Unit C2, 30/F, TG Place, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also make
enquiries with the Board at the general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERMSE

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication
with Shareholders is essential for good investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. Therefore, the Company
always seeks to provide relevant information through
various channels including formal announcements and
conferences, analysts presentations and roadshows
and forums organised by investment banks in order
to enhance the transparency and communication with
the investing public. The Company has established a
shareholders communication policy. The Board reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders
communication policy and the results were satisfactory.

The Company endeavoured to disclose all material
information about the Group to all interested parties as
widely and as timely as possible. The Company also
maintains a website at www.shirble.net, where up-to-
date information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, business development and other information
are available for public access. The general meetings
of the Company provide a platform for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. The Board and
the senior management will normally attend the annual
general meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the
Company to answer questions raised at the meetings.
The Board maintained an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders and answered all questions raised by the
shareholders throughout the last annual general meeting
held on 27 May 2024.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, the Company has made changes to its
Articles to be in line with the latest legal and regulatory
requirements, including the applicable laws of the
Cayman lIslands and the new electronic dissemination
rules under the expanded paperless listing regime of the
Stock Exchange which took effect on 31 December 2023.
The adoption of the amended and restated articles of
association of the Company had obtained shareholders’
approval at the annual general meeting held on 27 May
2024. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 24 April 2024 and the circular of the
Company dated 30 April 2024.

The Company’s constitutional documents is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AlA 18 M % BLED

To the Shareholders of Shirble Department Store

Holdings (China) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shirble
Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 56 to 205, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2024,

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,

comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, which indicates that the Group
incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB34 million and the cash outflow
of approximately RMB7 million during the year ended
31 December 2024. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB236 million and as of the same date,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB43 million and a total of RMB558 million in bank
borrowings, of which RMB331 million were current bank
borrowing in the PRC. Furthermore, since November 2023,
a subsidiary of the Group failed to repay a secured bank
loan of RMB254 million which was included the current
bank borrowings. These conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition
to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related
to Going Concern section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit is related to
valuation of investment properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

Key Audit Matter
BREIEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMETOMEERRENSHE

Valuation of investment properties

BREWRME

Refer to note 2.1.6, note 3.3, note 4(b) and note 14 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
FELEEREYBWMERNNTE2.1.6 - HIFE3.3 ~ MizE4(b)
KMiTE14 o

The Group’s investment properties were measured
at fair value of approximately RMB1,660 million
as at 31 December 2024, with a fair value loss of
approximately RMB139 million charged to profit or
loss for the year then ended.

202412 A31H © BREREVERQITFENS
ARM1,660BETLTE - Hh - REEZRAILFE -
RERTBRO A TEBBRO/ARKI0BET °

The Group’s investment property portfolio includes
self-owned buildings which are held for long-term
rental yields and the right-of-use assets for property
leases which had been or planned to be subleased
out under operating leases. The management has
engaged an independent valuer to assist in the
valuation of the fair value of investment properties.
EEENREMFEHGRENESRIA S WEME
FHEBEYME  UREKKFERELHEETHHED
MEBERBEAREE - EEBEZRBL(HER
RENIRE N TFEZHE -
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We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of valuation
of investment properties and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or
fraud, and performed audit procedures as follows:
BT REREBHREMEMENAN I MTHE
12 Wi RE R AR EERE A M E A E E
K - MM EBYE - FE9NEHEEENRA
SEGGFEV BRI - AT ERERWE AR - WETT
IANEETET -

° We validated the internal control over the fair
value of investment properties;

e HMBRET EXEETREVELTENHANI
BEVERR T

o We evaluated the independent external valuer’s
independence, professional qualifications and
relevant experience in the markets where the
Group’s investment properties are located and
obtained their valuation reports prepared for
financial reporting purposes;

e  HMFAGETHEIMNEGEMIBLN  FEER
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Key Audit Matter
BREIEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMETOMEERRENSHE

We focused on the area because the estimation of
valuation of investment properties is subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk
in relation to the valuation of investment properties
is considered significant due to complexity of the
methods, subjectivity of significant assumptions used,
and significant judgements involved in selecting data.
Given the significant balance of investment properties
and the involvement of significant judgements and
assumptions, the valuation of investment properties is
considered a key audit matter.
HRREMENGREAEZRRSRBENGETETE
M BB MERHBEIZESE - FRREVEMLED
EERBKRA/EKN  BAFEEM FIANEAREKE
FTEN  UREBRBURR P REKRHE - ERKREY
FFREN BFREBBAAEMRERR - HREWMED
HMERSEREFSE -
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We performed the following procedures with the
assistance of our internal valuation experts:

BPEABAESINHBE TETT THRF

(1)  We evaluated the appropriateness and
consistency of methodologies used in
the property valuations based on our
knowledge of the industry and market
practice;
BEBERMEITERTHEN 2 RHE - F M
FHME TOEAERATERGRE L —5:

(2)  We challenged the reasonableness of the
significant assumptions adopted in the
property valuations, inclusing term vyields,
reversionary yields and market rents, by
comparing them to recent lettings of the
Group’s investment properties, actual
occupancy rates achieved and recent
market transactions;
mBHLY SEEREVEZOHEAR
A BRERXRKEBTISRS - HME
RTVMEGREFAEAZEERR(BEE
HzR - ERRaERmisHEe) e 8
M
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

Key Audit Matter
BREIEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMETOMEERRENSHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [ 45

° We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the valuation input data on
existing leases by agreeing the rental income
and lease terms to the signed lease agreements;
and
RBLLEHESWARBHREEZTZHERZ
BAHREHEMERE T HERABUIRN LR
MEAEEY R

o We checked the calculation of the fair value of
the investment properties for accuracy.
BMRETREMELFETEERE -

Based on the above, we considered that
management’s judgements and assumptions
applied in the assessment of valuation of investment
properties were supportable by the evidence obtained
and procedures performed.
EREXfat - HFRREEBEETHREMEMRE
e P B R B0 # B (R 2R - TEFRS SIB BAIPT B TR AZ
Fr 1S X FF o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise ERE(HBREFER ) EITETNBEF
professional judgment and maintain professional BMERTEEHNE  RETEEERE
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: E o BAMIL -

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement BRI BN R MEBEEE

of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Au Chi Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE3R%E mEa Sl (FRE) ARAF

o HESRAMBHEANEBRIHIA
BMAT  BREEE- M&ﬁé%%ﬁ
REETERBMZHMEIR -

o FHEMBMITEERE c NERER &
SENERAXBEMMBEENTE
MIEEERE M%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ%
%% AFERREHMER - HMARE

~Wﬂﬂ%VEEI§ﬁﬁﬂGM%
ﬁlﬁ BMREFERAREARE
o

SREMERIN  RAREZZEQBBT A
FHESRE  BELH  EXEFER
% - BRERBMERF B BRI ARG E
[BEPN-NEK

BHERNEZZESQRIEH  HARME
NEAMBLMMERERERER > Y M
PBEBEERREA R ERAETERME
MHERRERERMEMEIER - AREERD
BERT - BAEBRE B EELERENITE
SEREREV T S E 1 ©

HHEZZESBBNERD  HMAETH
LERUANYPRAVBREINBARA/E
- AMEK R ERT FA o RPIEZEE
ﬁ¢¢TLJJ*$E BRIBAEER TR
AHABBEELIH XEBRFRNBR
T REEBERERMBRSTBBERENR
ERMEERRBBEEN AR M - B
RENEERSEPBBZEER -

F& - 2025%3H28H

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED 55



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mE W R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2024 2023
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MtaF AR®T AREET T
Revenue WA 6 200,295 190,666
Other operating revenue H A& A 7 27,686 29,886
Other gains/(losses) — net Hapldezs,/(BB)F5 8 17,526 (27,157)
Fair value losses on investment properties® & 435 &9 A F(H E5 18 14 (139,483) (156,004)
Purchase of and changes in inventories 175 518 &k & 9 (11,571) (6,667)
Employee benefit expenses BERMAX 9 (36,874) (34,127)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 375 K # 55 2 9 (2,355) (3,632)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 4 &t & & B8 (8 5 18 )% & 9 (1,554) (204,492)
Net impairment losses on prepayments  TE] 3 B R E B 185 (E 9 - (62,950)
Other operating expenses — net H b4 S FRE 9 (85,813) (81,861)
Operating loss KEEHE (32,143) (356,338)
Finance income AEWKA 11 6,779 18,476
Finance costs BhE R AN 11 (75,894) (68,642)
Finance costs — net A R AN E R 11 (69,115) (50,166)
Loss before income tax MR SHATEE (101,258) (406,504)
Income tax credit FrEfHE R 12 67,494 56,095
Loss for the year FERE (33,764) (350,409)
Loss attributable to: JEL 1R -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZFS DN (33,764) (340,982)
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR - (9,427)
(33,764) (350,400)
Losses per share for the loss ROTER AEAG
attributable to owners of the BEsERER
Company (expressed in RMB (UABRARKESIE)
per share)
— Basic losses per share —FRENEE 13(a) (0.01) (0.14)
— Diluted losses per share -~ SREEEE 13(b) (0.01) (0.14)
The above consolidated statement of income should be LR AW R B — R -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEzEHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Currency translation differences

Changes in fair value of investment properties
upon transfer, net of tax

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss for the year

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive

income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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Bl) BRA

] SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMBFT
FEEFR (33,764) (350,409)
Hih2m(EE), WaE
A GEER PR B BB B
HNES A = R (1,322) (2,185)
RN EYEQNTEN
BE)(FBRTIIA) - 20,654
FEEHM2E(ER) WE
(1,322) 18,469
FEZHEBERARE (35,086) (331,940)
FEAE -
VIN/NEIEZFE N (35,086) (322,513)
SRR - (9,427)
FE2HEBEAT (35,086) (331,940)
FulisrE 2GR EEE T —OBIE -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
T A" ==

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred income tax assets
Other receivables and prepayments

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables, other receivables
and prepayments

Properties held for sale

Deferred income tax assets

Restricted bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Accumulated losses

Total equity

58 SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  mE & S8 (FE) AR E)

As at 31 December 2024
202412 A31H

BE

FRBEE
REME
ERN
B EE
BEFSHEE
Ho At FE U IR I

BN RIA

RBEE
&

BAFERABDRERE

BE

B EWGHIR - Bl
JE WK IR K TR AN IR

FHEME
EREFSREE
ZRHIRITER
REeMREEFEY

maE

R
L@
Betn g (8
HAib R
ES 3

BREs

Note
MtaF

14
15
16

21

26
26
27
28

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

1,660,410 1,798,132
20,713 26,124
216 322
1,635 2,236
115,446 120,397
1,798,420 1,947,211
2,749 3,032
- 4,350
58,929 65,062
253,000 254,000
987 1,594
12,340 17,045
43,091 50,127
371,096 395,210
2,169,516 2,342,421
213,908 213,908
750,992 750,992
456,919 458,241
(671,058) (637,294)
750,761 785,847
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HmEEERER

As at 31 December 2024
M2024%12 8318

2024 2023
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®T T ARBETT

LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Lease liabilities HEEE 29 496,608 590,432

Deferred income tax liabilities BT ARE 19 88,176 80,394

Borrowings [EE2N 32 226,667 63,333

811,451 734,159

Current liabilities REBAE

Lease liabilities HEAE 29 65,331 53,681

Trade and other payables H 5 N E b FERT FRIE 30 148,822 126,777

Contract liabilities AHEE 31 19,412 28,136

Borrowings EEN 32 331,387 493,140

Income tax payable FERTFRIS R 42,352 120,681

607,304 822,415
Total liabilities =Rt 1,418,755 1,656,574
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 2,169,516 2,342,421
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in LG EEBERERAEN T —HEE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The financial statements on pages 56 to 205 were FE56E2058 2 SR ME =S HN202543
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2025 and BogAH#LETH TIESRKEREE -
were signed on its behalf.
HUANG Xue Rong YANG Ti Wei
BEER ok
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
S A HlE 3L gk

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HE2024F12A31BHILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN
Share Share Other Accumulated
capital premium reserves losses Total
TS R &aE Hitfife ZitER H)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®Tn AR¥TR ARETR AR%T:x
Balance as at 1 January 2024 R2024F141A 213,908 750,992 458,241 (637,294) 785,847
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year FEHE - - - (33,764) (33,764)
Other comprehensive loss HEit2EER
Currency translation differences (Note 27) fhtsit & =5 (fifs+27) - - (1,322) - (1,322)
Total comprehensive loss Hit2EEHBAH - = (1,322) (33,764) (35,086)
Balance as at 31 December 2024 R2024512831H 213,908 750,992 456,919 (671,058) 750,761
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F12A31HILFE

Balance as at 1 January 2023

Comprehensive loss
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Revaluation of property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment
properties, net of tax

Currency translation differences (Note 27)

Total comprehensive loss

Transaction with owners
Disposal of subsidiaries

Total transactions with owners

Balance as at 31 December 2023

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [ 45

R2023%151A

2AER
EERR
A2 EEE
ERERANRE
n% - BERREN
DFEEH(NRRR)
SERE 2R (Wer)
A2 EERAR

REEANRS
EENHBLT

REAANRAAR

JA2023512831R

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2N
Non-

Share Share QOther  Accumulated controling Total
capital  premium reserves losses Total interests equity
RE RVEE  AtEE  ZRER it FARER fign
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETR ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
213908 750992 439,772 (296,312) 1,108,360 8,151 1,116,511
- - - (340982 (340982) (9,427)  (350,409)
- - 20,654 - 20,654 - 20,654
- - (2,189) - (2,189) - (2,189)
- - 18,469 (340982 (322,513 (9,427)  (331,940)
- - - - - 1,276 1,216
- - - - - 1,276 1,216
213908 750992 458241  (637,294) 785,847 - 78847

PiliRE s BB R B B E M 5T — O BOE -

B) ARA

56 7] SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AlA RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2024 2023
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARBT T AREFTT

Cash flows from operating activities K& ZBHELNERESHRE

Cash generated from operations LEMEMNES 33(a) 81,377 106,522
Income tax paid BAATER (1,845) -
Net cash generated from RETEBBNERSFEE

operating activities 79,532 106,522

Cash flows from investing activities RE&EIZHELNREHRE
Payments for purchases of property, BEYE  BENM

plant and equipment and HEARIRE

investment properties LEL: 0K EN (1,799) (5,992)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BENEE

plant and equipment TS 3RI8 33(b) 1,092 67
Principal elements of finance lease B WX R & T & T

payment received AR 11,965 24,147
Interest elements of finance lease BRI B ERENHK

payment received 7 A B HB 5,893 8,858
Decrease/(increase) in restricted ZRRFIERITIE R

bank deposits wmA () 4,457 (297)
Interest received EHE 875 1,144
Net cash generated from RETZBEBNESEE

investing activities 22,483 27,927
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Interests paid

Principal elements of lease payments

as the lessee

GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Interest elements of lease payments

as the lessee

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of year

Effects of exchange rate changes

on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

at end of year

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be

METHELENRESRE

RN LN

EE AR

ERFHE

ERABABRENRK
CoRINc:1Pa)

ERABARENRK
ORI ISN=ila)

BMEFHTANEEFE
RERREEEY

WY FEE
FNREMREFEY

e RESSEY
ExeBHnpe

FRESRREEEY

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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) ARA

Note
BtaF

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREETFTT

268,734 36,172

(267,153) (65,757)

(20,872) (30,330)

(55,950) (68,848)

(33,652) (33,228)

(108,893) (161,991)

(6,878) (27,542)

50,127 77,954

(158) (285)

43,091 50,127
BemEREHENF—HME -

] SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

alln

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REH

Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 5 November 2008 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, (Cap. 22) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman

Islands.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
department stores operation in The People’s Republic

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

of China (“the PRC”).

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise

stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors (the

“Board”) on 28 March 2025.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. BITHEHME

POLICIES

This note provides a list of the material and other
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of

BB RAI -
R®(AR®INE -

REAEER(FRE)BRARNELD
7)) 2008F 11 ASHREMRE RS X
PlEg2E RAAERERS MK L
BERCERAT - HEMirEEAHT
it ACricket Square, Hutchins Drive,P.
0.Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands °

ARBEBREREERER - ARA]
REWB AR (FHE [ A&l ])HERX
BRNPEARKME([PE])ETAE

Pl
EIREE o

RRBBDREBEBERZMAERR
AERLE ©

AEEBYBERERAA

ZEE AV EIRERN2025F3 A28 H KL
EEe([ESg)IAETE -

AT A ML LT HEEMBRERAE
RZEBAREMEFTEE - RRBER

these consolidated financial statements. These Iy ZEBRREERERRIAZY 2
policies have been consistently applied to all the years FE o
presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 ERETHEHE
2.1.1 Basis of preparation 211 REEXE

(@)

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  mE & S8 (FE) AR E)

Compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS Accounting Standards”)
and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“HKCO”)

The consolidated financial
statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards and
requirements of HKCO Cap. 622.

ERERMERESS
AR (T B0 B B 75 i o5 2
R ) BB R mMED
(T&EBARMRM)

REM 247 E M F Mk
THERRBIR M SR E &
AR BBEDIF622E
&8 R RHERBZ AR TE M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 fE3keE  m= H S (

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for
investment property and financial
assets at fair value through profit and
loss (“FVPL”), which are carried at
fair value.

Going concern basis

For the year ended 31 December
2024, the Group incurred a net
loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB34
million and the cash outflow of
approximately RMB7 million. As at
31 December 2024, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately RMB236
million. The Group had cash and
cash equivalents of approximately
RMB43 million and a total of
RMB558 million in bank borrowings,
of which RMB331 million were
current bank borrowings in the PRC.

2. BN BEHBE s

2.1

EXREHBEMEE)

211 RBEE(E)

(b)

JEE st PR AN

BRIREME - BAFE
ABRm((EARES
ABR#BDOTREER
MTESMIARATE
ABRSN - AR A B F R
TR SR R EAREL ©

HE2024F12A31H
IEFE - REESER
NEEB ANEILBEF
HOARKEIMEET
FHEESREARELNT
BEJT ° R2024F 12
H318 » REEMRE
BEBBERSEEDN
ARBH4236BHETT °
REBEHEBRE KRS
ZEMHARKIZEE
TC MR BIAIRITIE R
BERARKELSE8E 8
JC ERREERITIER
BARKEIIEET -

~A] SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED 65

\

v



%
¥

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| v_\A H J &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

/750

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. EFBERBIEw)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 EAREHBEMEE)
(continued)
2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 211 EREE(E)
(c) Going concern basis (continued) () FHELEEW(E)

In November 2023, a subsidiary of
the Group (the “Subsidiary”) failed
to repay a secured bank loan of
RMB254 million (the “Bank Loan”).
Such Bank Loan is secured by a
property held for sale (the “Secured
Property”) that owned by the
Subsidiary and secured by guarantee
provided by certain third-parties,
who were the previous owners of
the Secured Property. As at 31
December 2024, the principal of the
bank loan was RMB254 million and
accrued interest and penalties were
RMB26 million. The Group intended
to sell the Secured Property to repay
the Bank Loan but has not yet been
able to identify a buyer due to the
property market condition. A court
case in the PRC was filed by the
bank on 8 April 2024 and the final
judgement issued by the Zhuhai
Intermediate People’s Court on 16
December 2024 was concluded as
follows:

()  the Subsidiary, which is a
limited company established in
the PRC, is required to repay
to the bank the amount due
together with the interests and
penalties;

(i) the bank has the priority right
to receive compensation from
the proceeds from the disposal
of or auction sale of the Secure
Property;

(i)  the bank may also request the
third party guarantors of Bank
Loan to settle the amount due
under the final judgement on a
joint and several basis.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

N2023%FE11 A - K&
B —XH B A K
AE])REEE—ZF
AR#254'FH 8 LK
HIRTER([BTE
K1) e ZERITEXA
WERARFFHEMNEL
EWME(NEFYE])
EREH  YhETE
ZHRMEER - EAK
HMERNTEB A o &
Z£2024F12A31H
RITEZEAEAARE
254E B NMERF B

UM%AEM%E
%ﬁ AEEFEHE
IR ENEERRTE
M BHEREHETS
M HAEEER o
R2024F4H8H - R
17 1A BB A B 4R H AR
0 REET R AR
mmm4ﬁwzﬂ16aa
E N TR SR AR -

AB—R
(LA
&= MR
1<JL/TJ\

BT

i BB
FEHE
5&’&5

T
u&ﬂ

H‘/\)
ﬁ S%‘ril

o

(i) RITEENEE
BEER=EiEiE/ES
P 1S H9 SRR E 5B
BBl 5 (5

(i) RITIMAIBE Bk
RITEZRMWE =
T ER A FEE
u-rJ/\H/EMEEl—Zéz
HRIE T B FE A
FKIB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(©

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Going concern basis (continued)

The above conditions indicated the
existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast a significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

In view of such circumstances,
the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity
and operating performance of the
Group and its available sources of
financing to assess whether the
Group will have sufficient financial
resources to fulfil its financial
obligations to continue as a going
concern. The following plans and
measures have been taken to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and
to improve its financial position,
including but not limited to those
described below:

()  Given the fact that there is
no guarantee provided by the
Group to the Bank Loan, based
on the legal opinion provided
by a PRC legal adviser to the
Company, the Directors are
of the view that the default
in repayment would not have
material adverse impact on
the business operations of the
Group as a whole. The Board
is also of the view that the
Subsidiary can dispose of the
Secured Property to generate
sufficient amount of fund for
the settlement of the Bank
Loan;

2. BN BEHBE s

21 EXREHTHEME(E)

211 REEE(E)

(©

FrERE R ()

ERBERRAFEEKX
THEEN - Al AL
BB ENRNES
EXREE -

BERLE - RARES
(EE ) CDEEZRE
AEENRKRBDES
REERRNEATHA
RAEHRIR - ArTHEARSE
EREARAYEER
BITHBRERELE
WS EE o B EREUA
TR EY I ) ek
=W BARK M
i BREETRRUAT
Hat

() EREAEEKRY
IRITE IR G E
R RBEARRQF]
—H R BEERE
IR EEE
B ZEEMRE
R REEEREE
R EHAEH
BENEKES
EXBERTAF
Z-BFEENR
AW B QB AR
BERERYMES
ERANE SN
EEEITER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

alln

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

68

21

Summary
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

of material accounting policies

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(©

Going concern basis (continued)

(i)  the Group will continue to
implement plans and measures
to improve the operation
performance of the department
store business to generate
operating cash inflow; and

(ily the Group believes that the
existing available facilities of
RMB49 million together with
the Group’s ability to obtain
new banking facilities with
the Group’s assets which are
available to be pledged as
security will provide sufficient
funding to the Group’s
operation, as and when
needed. The Group will also
consider to further dispose of
other assets to generate more
cash inflows, as and when
needed.

The Directors have reviewed the
Group’s cash flow projections, which
cover a period not less than 12
months from 31 December 2024.
In the opinion of the Directors, in
light of the above and taking into
account the anticipated cash flows
to be generated from the Group’s
operations as well as the above
plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient financial resources
to satisfy its future working capital
requirements in the 12 months
immediately after 31 December
2024. Accordingly, the Directors
consider that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern
basis.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

2. BN BEHBE s

2.1

EXREHBEMEE)

211 RBEE(E)

(©

REBEEK (hE) ERAR

SEEEER(E)

iy AEEBHEESR
MR EEEER
e EENE
MIBEHAEER
ERA R

AEBRBEA
ARBIOHE T
MAAREEE
mEREETH
EE B EEFR
B HRITR
ERETERA
REBREBER
HERHES -
ERER A&
ErgEEE—
THEHEMEE
NEEEZEE
WERA °

(i)

EFCEHLAEER
ERETER  BMEB
2024F 12 A31 HET
DR12ME A B EARE o
EERE - ER LIS
MRERIBHAE®HE
ERRMIEERESR -
AR Eatst I AE
REB KB B HRE
EIR K m B H B 2024
F12 A31 HE A
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ERZEBMASERE
BEBRBEE IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) Going concern basis (continued)

Notwithstanding the above, a
material uncertainty exists as to
whether the Group is able to achieve
its plans and measures as described
above. Whether the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern
would depend upon the Group’s
ability to generate adequate cash
flows through:

()  Successful disposal of the
Secured Property, and
collection of sales proceeds
to satisfy the repayment of the
Bank Loan;

(i)  Successful implementation
of the plans and measures
to improve the operation
performance of the department
store business to generate
operating cash inflow;

(i)  Success in obtaining new
banking facilities and/or
generate cash inflow from
disposal of the Group’s assets,
as and when needed.

2. BN BEHBE s

21 EXRETHEHME(E)

211 RBEE(E)

(©

SEEEER(E)

EEM  AEERS
BH bt st a8
BFHEEATHEEMYE - &
FEESHELE I
ARRAREBBEATH
XEEFR TR EMAAE
alE

() RYEEERY
%W
T 15 200 BA 38
KOG RITE

T
A

iy KRIWEBEEFEA
EEBCEEE
BB S e
EAKEERS
A

(i) EHFER K
ER/FMRITR
5/ i@ id
EREENEE
EEBRSRA °
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i 1 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-\A H o
L AlA b SRR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. BN BEHBE s
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 EAREHBEMEE)
(continued)
2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 211 RBEE(E)
() Going concern basis (continued) () RHELEEWE)

Should the Group be unable to
achieve the above plans and
measures such that it would not be
able to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be
made to write down the carrying
values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to recognize
further financial liabilities which
might arise with higher interest
rate, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities,

AAKEEXRER Lt
HEINIENE - MEERA
SEBERFELE 8
FETHE - BAEE
BEMKREEERESR
HAl @ &5 - ARER
AgeE - FEEFIER
SHNERAE XS
MBEENIFRDEE
DHEDERRBEE
MRBEE - BLRHE
W AR RREARG HH
WRT -

respectively. Such adjustments
have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

i
2N=C,
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. EHHE#BEw)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 EAREHBEMEE)

N

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 fE3keE  m= H S (

(continued)
2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d)

New and amended standards
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following
new standard and amendments to
existing standards for the first time
for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2024:

Amendments to International
Accounting Standards (IAS) 1
B & St XE RSB 1SR EVE AT
Amendments to IAS 1
B & St XE RIS 1SR EVE AT
Amendments to IAS 7 and
IFRS Accounting Standards 7
BIRR & 5T ERIE75% &
R TSRS R E TIREMER]
Amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards 16
B B 75 ¥R 5 Y B SB 165R VB ET
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

BEREBESTR (BEFT)

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognized in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

27\ SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

211 RBEE(E)

AREBERNHFTET M

ISR

(d)

AEE 202451 A1
B 516 B F € 3RS B
HRERA TSI ER R
RBEBIMEE] -

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

BESEARENIERD

Non-current liabilities with covenants

MR E 2 IEREB AR

Supplier finance arrangements
HEERE R
Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

ERrEEZEEAE

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
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EEGRZEHERZHE

EECE AT HIE R SRR

ERFE B TEHE SRR
HEELEATE -

71



L

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L AlF

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. EHEBE s
POLICIES (continued)
Summary of material accounting policies 21 EAGHBEMEE)
(continued)

72

21

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

C)

Fae)

B 75 ¥ 2% B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

New and amended standards not yet (e)

adopted

Certain new standards and
amendments to existing standards
have been published that are not
mandatory in current year and
have not been early adopted by the

Group.

Amendments to IAS 21
BB e ERE21 %05

Amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards 9 and
IFRS Accounting Standards 7

BRI RS ERIF% R
ERE BREEAETRNEE]

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards

BRMH RS FRAE

IFRS Accounting Standards 18
BRIRREERF 185

IFRS Accounting Standards 19
BRI REERF 195

Amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards 10 and
IAS 28

B BamE ERE 105 R
BRI £ 28T

Lack of exchangeability

Rz A

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of
Financial Instruments - Amendments

ERTAZHBREENET -]

Volume 11
F11ff

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

BRRCRERER

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
FARXARAMBLRAZBE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

REEEEROXAAE EELEIRA

211 RBEE(E)

R AR R BT AT R AR 8

5T RAT (55T

W%%ﬁl#ﬁﬁﬁ
ERHEE - AAER
A 42 41 A -

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after

RT3IAHA &
Rz FERREN

1 January 2025
202517410

1 January 2026

202651 A1H

1 January 2026
202651410

1 January 2027
2027%1A1H

1 January 2027
2027%1A1H

To be determined

e
i
i3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Fae)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Summary
(continued)

of material accounting policies

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(e

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (continued)

The above new standards and
amendments to existing standards
are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2025 and
have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial
statements. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised
standards and amendments,
certain of which are relevant to the
Group’s operations. According to
the preliminary assessment made by
the directors, no significant impact
on the financial performance and
positions of the Group is expected
when they become effective.

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

acco

(a)

unting
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

2.
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2.1
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The acquisition method of
accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group
(note 2.1.3).

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealized gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses
are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the
results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement
of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and balance
sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence
but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognized at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(©

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 £ 3R%  mEE &R (7F) AR AH

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangement and determined
it to be joint venture. Investments in
joint venture are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognized at cost.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of
accounting, the investments are
initially recognized at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognize
the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the
group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received
or receivable from the equity-
accounted investments are
recognized as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the equity-
accounted investments.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

76

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(d)

Equity accounting (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses
in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured
long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealized gains on transactions
between the Group and the
equity-accounted investments
are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The carrying amount of equity-
accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the
policy described in note 2.1.7.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 \I
EHZE2024F12A31 AL FE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. EFBERBIEw)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 EARSHBEMEE)
(continued)
2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 212 REREZETHEZEA
accounting (continued) (&)

(e) Changes in ownership interests () T RENEWEARN
in subsidiaries without change of THIBET - A EER
control Eok-dle
Transactions with non-controlling BB ERNR ST
interests that do not result in loss of B R AT RIS A
control are accounted for as equity =R A BIEAE
transactions — that is, as transactions BEUNBEEEZMET
with the owners in their capacity X5 o RN FE
as owners. The difference between MBS HE R EEE
fair value of any consideration paid ZMBARFEER®T
and the relevant share acquired of EENEBRD ZHH
the carrying value of net assets of ZEFT AR o HER
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. IR E R AW RS IE
Gains or losses on disposals to Kot o

non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

()  Disposal of subsidiaries H MHWBRAFNERE
When the Group ceases to have BAREE N BER T
control, any retained interest in R EEERRYEHR
the entity is re-measured to its fair SR AR R
value at the date when control is HIEE AN AFEEEN
lost, with the change in carrying A UEREmeEmE
amount recognized in profit or st ABm o BHIREEHE
loss. The fair value is the initial RIERBELE A%
carrying amount for the purposes TrESICREEETE
of subsequently accounting for the BAEE - LATEA
retained interest as an associate, SYEREE - i - 2
joint venture or financial asset. In AIfE B AR & W e wt
addition, any amounts previously ZERERNETMN 2
recognized in other comprehensive HERASEERERE
income in respect of that entity are HHEEEXBEAR -
accounted for as if the Group had BERRZAEEMIERS
directly disposed of the related WP RSB
assets or liabilities. It means the BHOBEEEESER
amounts previously recognized 2EANERT RS
in other comprehensive income HEBRTE RN R—
are reclassified to profit or loss or HHE o

transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

alln

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.3 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree, the equity interest issued by the
Group, the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement and fair value of any pre-
existing equity interest in the subsidiary.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. |ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognizes any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net assets of the business acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.3 Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date.
Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognized in profit or
loss.

2.1.4 Foreign currency translation

(@)  Functional and presentation
currency

[tems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entities
operate (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation
currency.

2. BN BEHBE s

21 EXRETHEHME(E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21

80

Summary
(continued)

2.1.4 Forei

(conti

(b)

of material accounting policies

gn currency translation
nued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are
generally recognized in profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized
in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive
income are recognized in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.4 Foreign currency translation
(continued)

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position
of foreign operations (none of
which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

()  Assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  Income and expenses for
each consolidated statement
of income and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income are translated at
average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions);
and

(iiiy  All resulting currency translation
differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

alln

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

82

2.1

For the year ended 31 December
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

2.1.5 Property, plant and equipment

2024

SETHEMEz)

21 EAREHBEMEE)

215 Y% - MEKRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of items.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognized
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost
or revalued amounts, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives or,
in the case of leasehold improvements and

WE - BFE MR EIRE LK
BRI E M RFHRER
BEY - BELAABERE
HBEEREE W -

EERBEEEHEOAREE
M A BEMAREE - %
HEB R KANGES R SEMET &
- TERZAERBERESE
MR AN Gt ARZ IR B EH) AR T
BEARERRBLEE - &
A BRERREIREE
R IR M B Bk

FEDRA A EAFR(K
HWEHEMERERETHE
EmE L&A lRwEE
EFH) AERABERAY
BEfMER(INREE) D &N

certain leased plant and equipment, the T
shorter lease term, as follows:
Useful lives Residual values
A A RE
Buildings 50-59 years 0%
BF 50E=594F 0%
Machinery and equipment 10 years 5%
e 104F 5%
Furniture and other equipment 5-10 years 0%-10%
R AL B B A 3R B 5-10%F 0%-10%
Motor vehicles 5 years 5%
E 5% 5%
Leasehold improvements 10 years or the remaining term 0%
of any non-renewable lease,
whichever is shorter
HEWEEE 10F S AT AERT HH A H I 0%
R (AR B R%E)
Others 5 years 0%-5%
HAh 54 0%-5%
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.5 Property, plant and equipment

(continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (note 2.1.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. These are included
in profit or loss. When revalued assets
are sold, it is Group policy to transfer
any amounts included in other reserves
in respect of those assets to retained
earnings.

2.1.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are held for
long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both and are not occupied
by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in profit or loss as “fair value
adjustment on investment properties”.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

84

21

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.6 Investment properties (continued)

An owner-occupied property or a right-of-
use asset transfer for lease is recognized
as investment properties (which measured
at fair value) at the date of change in
use. The transfer is made from owner-
occupied property or right-of-use asset
to investment property when owner-
occupation ceases, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item as at the
date of transfer is treated in the same
way as a revaluation under IAS 16. Any
resulting increase in the carrying amount
of the property is recognized in the income
statement to the extent that it reverses
a previous impairment loss, with any
remaining increase recognized in other
comprehensive income and increased
directly to equity in revaluation surplus
within equity. Any resulting decrease in
the carrying amount of the property is
initially charged in other comprehensive
income against any previously recognized
revaluation surplus, with any remaining
decrease charged to the income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortization and
are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets

(@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial
assets in the following categories:

o those to be measured
subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at
amortized cost.

The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its
business model for managing those
assets changes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(b)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognized
on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group
measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in
profit or loss.
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HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

° Amortized cost: Assets that
are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income
using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is
recognized directly in profit
or loss and presented in
other losses together with
foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. EHHE#BEw)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 EAREHBEMEE)

(continued)

218 RERHMEBMEE ()

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [ 45

income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are
presented in “Other losses”
and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item
in profit or loss.

HETEER (PE) ARAT

(continued)
(c) Measurement (continued) () FrE(#&)
Debt instruments (continued) EXETAE)
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

90

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortized
cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at
FVPL is recognized in profit or
loss and presented net within
“Other losses” in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures
all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be
recognized in profit or loss as “Other
income” when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.
Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognized in
“Other losses” in profit or loss as
applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit
losses (“ECL”) associated with
its debt instruments carried at
amortized cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.
For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS Accounting
Standards 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be
recognized from initial recognition of
the receivables, see note 3.1(b) for
further details.

2.1.9 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost comprises development costs
attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realizable value is determined
by reference to the sale proceeds of
properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling
expenses, or by management estimates
based on prevailing marketing conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

92

21

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are amounts
due from customers for lease services
performed in the ordinary course of
business or good sales. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less in the normal operating
cycle of the business of buyer, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are
recognized initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognized
at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect
the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized
cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment (see 2.1.8

(d)-
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.11 Contract assets and contract

liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a
buyer, the Group obtains rights to receive
consideration from the buyer and assumes
performance obligations to transfer
goods or provide services to the buyer.
The combination of those rights and
performance obligations gives rise to a
net asset or a net liability depending on
the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations.
The contract is an asset and recognized
as contract assets if the measure of the
remaining rights exceeds the measure of
the remaining performance obligations.
Conversely, the contract is a liability and
recognized as contract liabilities if the
measure of the remaining performance
obligations exceeds the measure of the
remaining rights.

The Group recognizes the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a
buyer as contract acquisition cost within
contract assets if the Group expects to
recover those costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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21

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.12 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash that is restricted from withdrawal,
from use or from being pledged as security
is reported separately on the face of
the consolidated balance sheets, and is
not included in the total cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statements
of cash flows.

2.1.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for
goods and services provided to the Group
prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid.

Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognized initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest
method.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. SHEBRXRBEw
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 EAGHBEMEE)
(continued)

2.1.14 Borrowings 2114 AR

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognized
in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment
of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance
sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognized in
profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. EHEBE s
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 EAGHBEMEE)
(continued)

96

2.1.15 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalized during the period
of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or

sale.

Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.
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HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. SHEBRXRBEw
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 EAGHBEMEE)
(continued)
2.1.16 Current and deferred income tax 2.1.16 BNEA R IEFE AT S HK
The income tax expense for the year is FAMEMAZIERNFEE
the tax payable on the current year's AW A2 EAIBISK - ThiR
taxable income based on the applicable ZaEER 2 BIRERTE
income tax rate for each jurisdiction MERAE . WIRER=Z=FEKL
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets AN EIERIL 2R
and liabilities attributable to temporary HMEEENBEZEHELD
differences and to unused tax losses. FEEBEH -
Current and deferred tax is recognized EHHH&LLXRIEEATE SR
in profit or loss, except to the extent M EE A E b A T UK ZS TR
that it relates to items recognized in amZIEE B EE ENE
other comprehensive income or directly mH R 2B B B E AR
in equity. In this case, the tax is also 9\\ o FEULIBERT - BTN
recognized in other comprehensive )“:UB’\ﬁmiEHﬂZ sok B ¥
income or directly in equity, respectively. P 7 R S
(@) Current income tax (@) BRERPTISHR
The current income tax charge BVHAFT 1S 7 B 2 T
is calculated on the basis of the WEHRARERARRE
tax laws enacted or substantively B AR R EE e
enacted at the reporting period in ARBAZBRREE
the countries where the Company N ABE B FRI5E
and its subsidiaries operate #itE - EIEET
and generate taxable income. EE A EATIEER
Management periodically evaluates ERREZB R THRIE
positions taken in tax returns with BB - WE BB
respect to situations in which THHE 2 E—Jab =
applicable tax regulation is subject THEERBIUAFB - &
to interpretation and considers EERIERAS uél’ﬂﬁ%i
whether it is probable that a taxation S TEARE R E AR UL
authority will accept an uncertain fREE - AEBUAREE
tax treatment. The Group measures % 7] DA BB 4F Hb T8 R
its tax balances either based on the THEFEERBRRTTER ©
most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

98

21

Summary
(continued)

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

of material accounting policies

2.1.16 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided
in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income
tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax liability in
relation to investment property that is
measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21
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Summary
(continued)

of material accounting policies

2.1.16Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are
recognized only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilize those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities
and assets are not recognized for
temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net
basis.

2.

S BEBE»)
21 ERSHEEHME(E)

2116 BN RIBEAE FT S B (42)

(b) EEFMSH(E)

{27 i AT B2 B R R FE SR
BAl TR EER

B8
HEE -

Al FERIE T

1l 7 5% [ 75 BE 77 22 i) ¢
(o] & Iy 22 %R 2 By A ek
FERRATGENENA
RGR#ERE - B E5t
SNEZIER B 2 BREE
R E A2 B =5
ERELEHRBRELE

Eo

(c)

A BIARITRIKHE

WRBEEERAE

]

EAETR BRI R — TR
BB - BTN
HEERBEAETNHIE
o BEBARIRNT

R SH 0 BRI F R A

:E/r/v
@“E

MIAEE T AR -

27\ SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

VAR E E K

99



L]

&

L AlA

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.17 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group’s subsidiaries registered
in PRC contributes, based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the
employees, to a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan and medical
benefit plan organized by relevant
municipal and provincial government
authorities in the PRC on a monthly
basis. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all
existing and future retired employees
under these plans and the Group
has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. Contributions
to these plans are expensed as
incurred.

The Group makes contributions
to defined contribution retirement
schemes under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong, the assets of which
are generally held in separate
share administered funds. The
pension plans are generally funded
by payments from employees
and by the Group. The Group’s
contributions to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable
when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes
termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when
the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b)
when the entity recognizes costs
for a restructuring that is within the
scope of IAS 37 and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are
measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to
their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual
leave are recognized when they
accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognized even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present
value of management’s best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the
present value of the obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.19 Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized when or as
performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring control of a promised good or
service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the asset
may transfer over time or at a point in time.
Control of the asset is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer; or

o creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed
to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time,
revenue is recognized over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognized at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the
asset.

The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation
is measured based on the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation that best depict
the Group’s performance in satisfying the
performance obligation.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Summary
(continued)

2.1.19 Reve

(a)

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

of material accounting policies

nue recognition (continued)

Direct sales

Revenue from direct sales of
merchandise is recognized when
the control of the products has
transferred, being when the buyer
obtains the future right to direct the
use of the merchandise and obtain
substantially all of the remaining
benefits from the merchandise,
recovery of the consideration is
probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can
be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement
with the goods, and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

The consideration relevant to sales
of merchandise that result in the
award of credits to customers
under the Group’s customer loyalty
programme, is not recognized as
revenue at the time of the initial sale
transaction. A contract liability for the
award of credits is recognized at the
time of sales. Revenue is recognized
when the awarded credits are
redeemed. A contract liability is
derecognized when the awarded
credits are redeemed.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BN BEHBE s

2.1

EXREHBEMEE)

2119 W ATERE (&)

(@

REBEEK (hE) ERAR

HEIHE

ERHERRZIKA
A8 R B an 4R I
(MEERESEER
an 2 FR H) B & A8 Ko &
BRABD R T EmA
Mz o BRATgEMEI
B MARKRATERE
BRI BE 1 REFA ] SEM G
it B ES R A
BEBARBA S
mE] S IAETER) - B
SREBMA -

RIEA SR H B & AT
FREPIRHEEERD
i 6 2K O 7 m 5 5 AE R
RE EERHERS
RN - E
BOMBHNAERNHEE
RHERR o AR ERE TR
DBERER - KA
BERREENBEEEL
LEFERR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [E %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [ 45

Direct sales (continued)

Sales of merchandise that result in
the award of credits to customers
under the Group’s customer
loyalty programme, are accounted
for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value
of the consideration received or
receivable is allocated between the
merchandise sold and the award
credits awarded. The consideration
allocated to the awarded credits is
measured by reference to the fair
value of the cash coupons for which
they could be redeemed.

Commission from concessionaire
sales

Commission income from
concessionaire sales is recognized
upon sales of goods by the relevant
stores.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from lease of
property owned by the Company
and subleased shop premises under
operating leases is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period covered by the lease
term. Lease incentives granted
are recognized in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivables.
Contingent rentals are recognized as
income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21
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Summary
(continued)

2.1.19 Reve

(d)

of material accounting policies

nue recognition (continued)
Properties sales

For property sales contracts,
the controls of the property are
transferred at a point in time, thus
revenue is recognized when the
customer obtains the physical
possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and
the collection of the consideration is
probable.

Promotion, administration and
management income

Revenue from promotion,
administration and management
fees is recognized according to
the underlying contract terms with
concessionaries and as the services
are provided accordingly.

Credit card handling fee for
concessionaire sales

Credit card handling fee for
concessionaire sales is recognized
when the relevant service is
rendered.

Prepaid cards

Cash received for prepaid cards sold
are recognized as contract liabilities
in the balance sheet. Revenue from
prepaid cards is recognized when
the goods are delivered and the
control of the goods has transferred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.20 Interest income

21.21

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 £ 3R%  mEE &R (7F) AR AH

Interest income from financial assets
at FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains/(losses) on these assets, see note 8
below.

Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-
use asset (for self-occupation), an
investment property (for subleased-out
under operating leases), a receivable (for
subleased-out under finance leases) and a
corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the
Group. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.21 Leases (continued)

Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract
to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of properties for which
the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a
lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are
based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase
option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising that option.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. EHHE#BEw)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 21 EAREHBEMEE)
(continued)
2.1.21 Leases (continued) 2121 HE(E)

Lease payments to be made under
reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing
rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-
party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts
with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent
third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the
lease, e.g. term, country, currency
and security.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2.
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POLICIES (continued)

21

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

2.1.21 Leases (continued)

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

restoration costs.

the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability;

any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less

any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs; and

Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.1.21 Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term
leases of equipment and vehicles and all
leases of low-value assets are recognized
on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment
and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases
where the Group is a lessor is recognized
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term (note 2.1.19(c)). Initial direct
costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount
of the underlying asset and recognized as
expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group
did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2.

112

POLICIES (continued)

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies

2.2.1 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets

including goodwill.

2.2.2 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board that
makes strategic decisions.

2.2.3 Intangible assets

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences
are capitalized on the basis of the cost
incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are
amortized using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10
years. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are
recognized as an expense as incurred.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  sRE B &%
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 \
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

SETHEMEz)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies 2.2 HMEHBEHMEE)

(continued)

2.2.4 Inventories 224 &

Inventories comprise merchandise
purchased for resale, and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined using the weight
average method. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.2.5 Share capital and shares held for

employee share scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired
from the market by the trust under
the employee share scheme, the total
consideration of shares acquired from the
market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares
held for employee share scheme and
deducted from total equity. Upon vesting,
the related costs of the vested shares
for employee share scheme purchased
from the market are credited to shares
held for employee share scheme, with
a corresponding decrease in employee
share-based compensation reserve for
employee share scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. BN BEHBE s
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Summary of other accounting policies 2.2 HMEHBEHMEE)

(continued)

2.2.6 Share-based payments 226 URMHAEE 2R
Equity-settled share-based payment VAR b 45 B LA (0 R BT 2
transactions N5
The Group operates a number of equity- AEERELZHEUNRELSE
settled, share-based compensation plans, AR BB R F Bt &) -
under which the Group receives services Bt AEBWREKERES
from employees as consideration for BRBIERAEEERTH
equity instruments (including share option (B IEBE R #E S 22 B A% 17 ) By
and awarded shares) of the Group. The fair RE - -EEASERERTHEZD
value of the employee services received TAMBHREA QT EE
in exchange for the grant of the equity RRAX - BTZHENES
instruments is recognized as an expense. HLEMBRERTAMNQF
The total amount to be expensed is BEEE

determined by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments granted:

e Including any market performance e PREAMMISERERK
conditions; EaE

e Excluding the impact of any service o THEIEMMREKLIET
and non-market performance vesting HBRBBEBHRG &

conditions; and

o Including the impact of any non- o BIEEMIEHFEBIEGH
vesting conditions. TE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 \
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2. BN BEHBE s
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies 2.2 HMEHBEHMEE)

(continued)

2.2.6 Share-based payments (continued) 226 URMEER ZNRE)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of equity instruments that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It
recognizes the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the share options are exercised,
the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital.

2.2.7 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the
right to receive payment is established.

2.2.8 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognized as a liability
in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies

116

(continued)

2.2.9 Losses per share

(@) Basic losses per share

Basic losses per share is calculated
by dividing:

o the losses attributable to
owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

° by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

Diluted losses per share

Diluted losses per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of
basic losses per share to take into
account:

° the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average
number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies

(continued)

2210 Government grants

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [ 45

Grants from the government are
recognized at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognized in the profit or
loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate.

Government grants relating to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

REAEER (FE) ARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

118

3.1

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risks), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under the
policies approved by the Board. The Board
provides principles for overall risk management,
as well as policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(@) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is mainly exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) and
United States dollar (“USD”) against
RMB. This foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial
transactions or recognized assets
and liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency of RMB.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and it has not
hedged its foreign exchange risk
during 2024 and 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = &
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)
()  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The carrying amount of the foreign
currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities of
group companies at the respective
dates of statement of financial
position are as follows:

Assets EBE
HKD BT
UsD ETT
Liabilities =L
HKD BT

3.

R ERZ)

3.1

HERREE(EZ)
(a) WEHEARE)

() SMNERR(E)

KERRRBBH BN

B HEILVOMNERHER
BERHEERERILESR
BENREEEBEAN

T
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFTT
12,708 17,009
142 183
12,850 17,192
878 1,733
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

120

(continued)

3.1

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table shows the
sensitivity analysis of a 2% change
in RMB against the relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis
includes only foreign currency
denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year-
end for a 2% change in foreign
currency rates. Should RMB
strengthened/weakened by 2%
against the relevant currencies, the
effects on the profit or loss for the
year would be as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BEARER%)

3.1

BBEBREE(E)

(@) WEHEEREGE)

(i)

SN L Fek (48 )

TRETAREEHR
SN B B 2% B BURR E
DT o RBURE I E
BIEASNEEHENE R
HE - RFERINEER
EHonmABRE -
WAREHBEHEEE T
B/ E2%  HFE

BamMFEWT

Change of profit or loss -

increase/(decrease)
BEEE - Mm CRD)
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBEFTT
RMB against HKD: AREEEBE
Strengthened by 2% F1E2% (177) (229)
Weakened by 2% 87{82% 177 229
RMB against USD: ARBSHET
Strengthened by 2% FE2% 2 )
Weakened by 2% B2 1E2% 2 3
In addition, the conversion of RMB o - AREETHER
denominated balances into foreign MBI E BINE BB ST
currencies is subject to the rules and A B AR M 2 SNE R

regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and
borrowings. Restricted bank
deposits issued at fixed rates
exposed the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. Other financial
instruments issued at variable rates
exposed the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group does not anticipate
significant impact to cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank
deposits because the interest rates
of these assets are not expected to
change significantly.

The interest rates and terms of
repayment of borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 32.
The Group does not carry out any
hedging activities to manage its
interest rate exposure.

As at 31 December 2024, if interest
rates on bank balances at variable
rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss before tax for
the year ended 31 December 2024
would have been approximately
RMB215,000 (2023: RMB251,000)
lower/higher.

3. BEARER%)

3.1 HERBMEER(E)

(@) WEHEEREGE)

(i
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SRFIEES -
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TIH R FEERF R
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FAGFR M ZE321 55 -
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HHEEBAEEMNER

B o

M2024F 128318 -
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e R R IG 0, R
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

122

(continued)

3.1

e MR MR

For the year ended 31

December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (continued)

At 31 December 2024, if interest
rates on borrowings had been 50
basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, loss
before tax for the year ended 31
December 2024 would have been
approximately RMB2,790,000 (2023:
RMB2,782,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk arises from restricted
bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, and trade and other
receivables. The carrying amounts
of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

(b)

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 fE3keE  m= H S (

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

To manage this risk, restricted
bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents were placed with state-
owned financial institutions and
reputable commercial banks which
are all high-credit-quality financial
institutions in mainland China and
Hong Kong. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that provision
of rental services and direct sales
are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. It also
has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue trade and other
receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade
receivables and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over
a number of counterparties and
customers.

3. BEARER%)

3.1 HERBMEER(E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. HMKREREE®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBEREBEE(E)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =HRKE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets iy SMEERE
The Group has five types of financial rEBELESREE
assets that are subject to the ECL XIEHEAEEELA
model: R
e Cash and cash equivalents and e HekHEEEE
restricted bank deposits; W A R 52 PR &) £
TER
. Trade receivables for sales of e HmZEZEW
merchandise; A
e Receivables from operating o IREMEINGRIR
leases;
e Amount due from a related o B —REEH
party; and HRIE K&
e Other receivables. o HMMEUFRIE »
While cash and cash equivalents ERE MRS EEMI
are also subject to the impairment RE TR B M iR
requirements of IFRS Accounting B9 R E R E -
Standards 9, the identified B E 2024 F Kk 20234
impairment loss was immaterial as at 12 A31 HE & 5 89
31 December 2024 and 2023. BEBBILTERK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

The Group considers the probability
of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been
significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. A default
on a financial asset is when
the counterparty fails to make
contractual payments when they
fall due. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets with
the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators
are incorporated:

° actual or expected significant
adverse changes in business,
financial and economic
conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to
the third party debtor’s ability
to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant
changes in the operating
results of the customers;

° significant changes in the
expected performance and
behavior of the debtor,
including changes in the
payment status of debtor.

3. BEARER%)

3.1 HERBMEER(E)

(b) ERERE

(i
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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(continued)

3.1

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of trade receivables for
sales of merchandise

The Group applies the IFRS
Accounting Standards 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables for sales of merchandise.

The expected loss rates are based
on the corresponding historical
credit losses and adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
On that basis, the Group assessed
that the impairment of loss allowance
for trade receivables for sales of
merchandise was immaterial as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

Impairment of receivables from
operating leases

The Group applies the IFRS
Accounting Standards 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all
receivables from operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of receivables from
operating leases (continued)

To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables from
operating leases have been assessed
on individual basis or grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

Except for certain receivables from
tenants with specific credit risk
the Group adopts an individual
impairment assessment approach,
the Group uses roll-rate method to
calculate ECLs for receivables from
operating leases. The roll rates for
each bucket are based on the past
due days for groupings of various
tenants’ segments that have similar
patterns. The expected loss rates
are based on the corresponding
historical credit loss rates and
adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the tenants to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified
the Real GDP Growth, Fiscal
Balance, Consumer Price Index
(“CPI") and M2 Growth Rate of the
countries in which it sells its goods
and services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

3. BEARER%)

3.1 HERBMEER(E)

(b) ERERE

(i
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i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBRBRERE®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBEREBEE(E)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EREARKGE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) SHMEEREGE)
(continued)
Impairment of receivables from AL THE JEY AR E
operating leases (continued) (4&)
On that basis, the collective basis Bt - B = 2024F 12
loss allowance as at 31 December A31AMEBEEESE
2024 was determined as follows: BsmT
More than
Current  0-30days 31-90days 91-365days 365 days Total
i 0230%  31Z90%  01Z365%  BiB365K gt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTR ARMTR ARRTR ARRTR ARWTR

As 31 December 2024 2024512318

Expected loss rate BHEER 9.53% 13.83% 44.78% 74.37% 100.00% 16.72%
Gross carrying amount BENE 23,000 31 690 792 1,213 26,006
Loss allowance BERE 2,193 43 309 589 1,213 4,347

As 31 December 2023 2023512 431F

Expected loss rate L p=Ed 10.60% 10.35% 32.01% 67.56%  100.00% 19.79%
Gross carying amount PEEE 22,761 1,150 653 1,085 1999 27,648
Loss allowance EREE 2412 119 209 733 1,999 5472
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of receivables from
operating leases (continued)

As of 31 December 2024, the
original carrying value of individual
impaired receivables from
operating leases was RMB580,000
(2023: RMB2,643,000), the loss
allowance was RMB580,000 (2023:
RMB2,643,000) such that the net
carrying value of individually impaired
receivables from operating leases
was zero.

Impairment losses on trade
receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Impairment of amount due from a
related party

Due to the financial difficulties of the
related party, the amount due from
a related party was credit impaired
and was categorized in stage 3 in
2024. The Group measures the
loss allowance of the amount due
from a related party at an amount
equal to the lifetime ECL according
to IFRS Accounting Standards 9
requirements.

3. BEARER%)

3.1 HERBMEER(E)

(b) ERERE

(i
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

130

(continued)

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

ECL model for amount due from a
related party, as summarized below:

Amount due from a related
party is not credit-impaired on
initial recognition is classified
in “Stage 1” and has its credit
risk continuously monitored
by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a
12-month basis;

The Group measures the loss
allowance for amount due
from a related party at an
amount equal to the lifetime
ECL if the credit risk of that
financial instrument has
increased significantly since
initial recognition, but is not yet
deemed to be credit impaired;

If the financial instrument is
credit-impaired (as defined
below), it is then moved to
“Stage 3”. The expected credit
loss is measured on lifetime
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 fE3keE  m= H S (

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

The ECL is the discounted product
of the Probability of Default (PD),
Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss
Given Default (LGD). These three
components are multiplied together.
This effectively calculates an ECL
for each future year, which is then
discounted back to the reporting
date and summed. The discount rate
used in the ECL calculation is the
effective interest.

EAD is based on the amounts the
Group expects to be owed at the
time of default, over the remaining
lifetime. The PD represents the
likelihood of a borrower defaulting
on its financial obligation, over the
remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of
the obligation. LGD represents the
Group’s expectation of the extent of
loss on a defaulted exposure.

3. BEARER%)

3.1

BBEBREE(E)

(b) =ARKE)

(i
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

132

(continued)

3.1

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

The calculation of ECL incorporate
forward-looking information. The
Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the predict
China real GDP growth in which it
provides its services to be the most
relevant factors as the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and
the expected credit loss.

As with any economic forecasts,
the projections and likelihoods of
occurrence are subject to a high
degree of inherent uncertainty and
therefore the actual outcomes may
be significantly different to those
projected. The Group considers
these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes to
establish that the chosen scenarios
are appropriately representative of
the range of possible scenarios.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

Judgment of significant increase in
credit risk (“SICR”)

Under IFRS Accounting Standards
9, when considering the impairment
stages for financial assets, the Group
evaluates the credit risk at initial
recognition and also whether there
is any significant increase in credit
risk for each reporting period. The
Group considers various reasonable
supporting information to judge
if there is significant increase in
credit risk when determining the
ECL staging for financial assets.
Major factors being considered
include overdue status, solvency and
operational capabilities. The Group
could base on individual financial
instruments or portfolios of financial
instruments with similar credit risk
characteristics to determine ECL
staging by comparing the credit risks
of the financial instruments at the
reporting date with those at initial
recognition.

The Group reviews the related
party’s financial information and
assesses the related party’s financial
position to judge whether the credit
risk has SICR after initial recognition.
The judgment criteria mainly include
the PD changes of the debtors,
changes of credit risk categories and
other indicators of SICR, etc.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

134

(continued)

3.1

e MR MR

For the year ended 31

December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

The definition of credit-impaired assets

Under IFRS Accounting Standards 9,
in order to determine whether credit
impairment occurs, the defined
standards adopted by the Group
are consistent with the internal
credit risk management objectives
for relevant financial assets, while
considering quantitative and
qualitative indicators. When the
Group assesses whether the debtor
has credit impairment, the following
factors are mainly considered:

° The debt has overdue after the
contract payment date;

o The lender gives the debtor
concessions for economic or
contractual reasons due to the
debtor’s financial difficulties,
where such concessions are
normally reluctant to be made
by the lender;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
44 B I8 3R % MY & i

For the year ended 31 December 2024 \”'”
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBRBRERE®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BH¥RBEEE)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EREARKGE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) SHMEEREGE)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 fE3keE  m= H S (

(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

The definition of credit-impaired assets
(continued)

° The debtor has significant
financial difficulties;

° The debtor is likely to go
bankrupt or needs other
financial restructuring;

° The credit impairment of
financial assets may be caused
by the joint effects of multiple
events and may not be caused
by separately identifiable
events.

As with any economic forecasts,
the projections and likelihoods of
occurrence are subject to a high
degree of inherent uncertainty and
therefore the actual outcomes may
be significantly different to those
projected. The Group considers
these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes to
establish that the chosen scenarios
are appropriately representative of
the range of possible scenarios.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

136

(continued)

3.1

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

The definition of credit-impaired assets
(continued)

The directors have reviewed the
related party’s financial information
and assessed the related party’s
financial difficulties. As the related
party is faced with liquidity problem,
the Group evaluated the amount due
from a related party as in default. The
expected credit loss of the amount at
due from a related party is measured
on lifetime basis.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023,
full impairment allowance was made
against the amount due from a
related party.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BEARER%)

3.1

BBEBREE(E)

(b) =ARKE)

(i

REBEEK (hE) ERAR

ERMEEREGE)

JEY — 7 B 77 AR A
R1E (&)

1= A 8 (8 & E B %
()

EECENRENTNY
BEMIF A RIETT A
PATEINEE - ANBET
ERRBIERE - A&
%1 % e Mo R 3 77 SR IR R
HRERN - BIREET
RIEMEHRERBRR
FEUEE -

2024 [ 20234F 12
AB1BLIEFE Ak
I —HEEE R FIAER
BB -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [E %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of other receivables

The Group applies the IFRS
Accounting Standards 9 three-
stage approach to measuring ECL.
The Group’s other receivables
mainly include interest receivables,
receivables from finance leases and
lease deposits for the leases of right-
of-use assets. These three types of
other receivables were categorized
in stage 1, and the credit risk is
low, therefore the impact of loss
allowance is immaterial.

As at 31 December 2024,
RMB1,608,000 (2023: RMB1,765,000)
of impairment of loss allowance was
made for the receivables.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i

138

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Loss allowance movement during the
year

The loss allowances for financial
assets as at 31 December 2024
reconcile to the opening loss
allowances as follows:

At 1 January R1A1H

(Decrease)/Increase in loss ~ ERRBRFA
allowance recognized in profit HEAREEER
or loss during the year (A)/%m

Written off in loss allowance 38R £ E 1R
recognized in the past year 1B

At 31 December W2A31H

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

_NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. BEARER%)

3.1

BBEBREE(E)
(b) fERERGE

(il SEEREE)

EREER R

M2024F12 A31 B HY
SR E E R R R B

VB RREYEMT
Receivables Amount
from due from
operating arelated Other
leases party  receivables Total
El—%
RERE BES Hitr
e HE e @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
8,115 336,164 1,765 346,044
(M) - 1,625 1,554
(3,117) - (1,782) (4,899)
4,927 336,164 1,608 342,699
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

(i)

Financing arrangements

In March 2024, the Group obtained
RMB300,000,000 7-year credit
facilities from a PRC Bank, which
was secured by certain investment
properties of the Group (note 32(a)).
For the year ended 31 December
2024, RMB49,220,000 of the
facilities which will expire within one
year was undrawn by the Group.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The management of the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash
and cash equivalents and ensure
the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of available
financing, including short-term
and long-term bank borrowings
to meet its business demand. The
Group maintains bank facilities and
continuously monitors forecasted
and actual cash flow and the
maturity profiles of its financial
liability to control the liquidity risk.

The table below shows the Group’s
financial liabilities based on the
remaining period at the end of the
reporting period to the contractual
maturity dates. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

3.

EEMRER )

3.1 HERBMEER(E)

(c)

RBESEM

(i)

(i
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December

2024
Borrowings (Note 32) BRWH32)
- Principal to be repaid -EEEMEE
- Interest payables -[ERFIE
Lease liabilities HE&E
Other financial liabilties Ehemak

For the year ended 31 December

2023
Borrowings (Note 32) BR (a2
- Principal to be repaid -EEENAS
- Interest payables ~[ERFIS
Lease liabilties HERE
Other financial liabilities Eematk
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3. KEBREREw)
3.1 M¥ERBEREE)
(c) REBELEKE)
iy SMBEBEINERE)
HZE2024%F12H31H
LFEE
More than ~ More than
1yearbut 2years but
Within less than less than ~ More than
1 year 2 years 5years 5years Total
—ENEE  WENLE
-ER WEMR  EENR BBEF @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥Tn ARETn ARMTR AR%T#R
348,335 40,149 110,366 129,746 628,596
331,387 26,667 80,000 120,000 558,054
16,948 13,482 30,366 9,746 70,542
107,017 109,974 288,109 251,320 756,420
116,531 - - - 116,531
571,883 150,123 398,475 381,066 1,501,547
HE2023F 128318
IEFE
More than More than
1yearbut 2 years but
Within less than less than More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—ENHE  RENLR
—ER MER RENR BARE &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
505,866 10,282 28,469 42,868 587,485
493,140 6,667 20,000 36,666 556,473
12,726 3,615 8,469 6,202 31,012
104,486 107,230 320,255 308,972 840,943
105,978 - - - 105,978
716,330 117,512 348,724 351,840 1,534,406
HEB SR (FE) BRAR  ANNUAL REPORT 2024 “F[Z 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E U

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to

° Safeguard their ability to continue as a
going concern, so that they can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders; and

° Maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group
monitors its capital structure on the basis of
debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, the Group
defines debt as total borrowings and equity
as total equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

The debt-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2024
and 2023 were as follows:

Borrowings (Note 32) &R (A £32)
Lease liabilities HEAE
Total borrowings (CEE L
Equity e

Debt-to-equity ratio

BfEEm X

3. BEARER%)

3.2 BEXREHE
AEBEREARABIEZER
e REAEHIFBEKSH

N BREEABREERE
MESHEMBOHESE &

o HF
ZNDFAN

REERNRBURDE

Vel (ﬂ#j@,ﬂﬁkézﬁ E - AEEA
BEERHERNTRRZRE - &

BRZEXR - %éfﬁ%ﬁﬂxf’ﬁiﬁj%iﬁ
ELR D BB B

BITREMNER -2 AEEREA
Tﬂgﬁﬁtt?ﬁ*??‘ﬁi\éfz!& 8 - gt

 AEEK B EERSERE
%E jIHﬂT%Em;E%Z%$ AEAA
FE(5 K

A2024F 2202312 A31H 7 &
B =RNT

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT
558,054 556,473
561,939 644,113
1,119,993 1,200,586
750,761 785,847
149% 153%
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
(@) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair
values of the financial instruments that are
recognized and measured at fair value in
the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Group
has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standards. An explanation of
each level follows underneath the table.

Recurring fair value

measurements

EEMAFETE

31 December 2024

2024%12A831H

FVPL BRATEEBRRR

Unlisted equity securities K EMRERE%
(Note 20) (Hs#20)

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

3. BEARER%)

3.3 AV{EfhE
(@) AFESHR

7 613 ) A 7 T A B TS R R
AEBERAFEAEZERHT
B® R FEREL Z HE R
et - REERAFEMAEH
ABEBENRERERER K
SERESHENGESR
BENRBEIRZE - &E
Rz MR T -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F1E F2E 3 #ct
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBMTRE AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR

HEOEER (hE) BRAT ANNUAL REPORT 2024 G #E
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Recurring fair value

measurements

EEHAFETE

31 December 2023

R2023F12A31H

FVPL BATEEBER

Unlisted equity securities K EMREES
(Note 20) (Hist20)

There were no transfers between levels 1,
2 and 3 during the year (2023: nil).

The Group’s policy is to recognize
transfers into and transfers out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial
instruments traded in active markets (such
as publicly traded derivatives, and trading
and available-for-sale securities) is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1.

3. BEARER%)

3.3 AFEME(HE)

(a) DFPEERE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2E Ek]= @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR
- - 4,350 4,350

NAEE » 18 - F2E R
F3E 2 E M EE (2023
FE) o

AEBEZHRERBNE®RE N
RERRAFEERZBEAR
B e

F1E - NERTMBHEEZS
BIAPINAREENITE
THEH MtEExAHLE
ZRBH) N HETRNERE
HIRFBMEFE - AEH
REZTREEMERZT
BHRERRITEANE - TF
TABEME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

144

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 2: The fair value of financial
instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant
inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.

Valuation techniques used to
determine fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to
value FVPL include:

o The use of quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for similar instruments;
and

° For other financial instruments —
discounted cash flow analysis

Also see note 14 for the valuation
techniques for investment properties.

There were no changes in valuation
techniques during the year.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

3.

PRE BBk

R ERZ)

3.3

AFEE ()

(a)

(b)

() BRAA

DPEER(E

EIEI:t:

$2E  WIFNERTIZES
2 & T A (BIangaNs 517

ETR)Z R HETDRGEET
EEE  REETEAEERN

ﬁﬁﬂgﬂ?ﬁﬁ%%{ﬁ&ﬁﬁ;ﬂ
DRI E AR E AT o 1
—HTAMRAFEMBHMR
BERGABEAAUERH
7 BT AIAR2E -

HIE  W—IEHZBEAE
ABEILIERETEEMS
e QIR TAIIAEIE -
FE_ TR A GBS AE AR o

REEEAFPEZMERE

REEZRAFES ABRR

RAFEMBERTERE

o EABALIANTSR

B HERE &

o H&SeRT A —UABLER

fﬁi MEBAHT

EEAREMEZGHEREF
26514 -

FABERML EELS) -
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.

SEMBREREME =

\
For the year ended 31 December 2024 H
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4. BRI AR HAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE3E  mE s SER (RE) BRAF

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also
needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and judgements that may have a
significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year as
discussed below.

(@) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognizes liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognized when
management considers to be probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilized. The outcome of their actual
utilization may be different. Details of the
deferred income tax are disclosed in note 19.

RREHE R A AR E - MRS
% EELSRERER - EREN
BRI B 0 @ 3 IR B RE R (i
8 -

REmPHEMAE  BEATEHZES
R BEELNEBERBERATHER
ZHREFEM 2 EE -

e R P B i S BT - EREBAE
PR
&1

BINFCHR R - fiiet RN e A
ERABNEEERT—HREESE
AHE -

(a) FE®t

AEBBETBEYMAENR - €8
EMBHREER - BEELERH
B - BZEISHMAE S M2 &K
MBEETH/TEE - AEERE
HEOFEHNBEIMNIR 2 EET
ITBHIN SR ERERAE -
I FE R REN G AR BRI
BB AHLEEE[ZE
1 78 A T8 B A AR B RO T Ay
"HEENEE -

11 3R JE 8 A% AR R B AR A 0 ) T
RIBSHE B Z R IR RE - Al
SRREE TEREENMRIERNLX
BERNELHREE - HERSHA
ZERHIFFBANR o EERFHR
ZFRIEWBRMEE9
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

146

(b)

(c)

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation technique.
Details of the judgment and assumptions have
been disclosed in note 14. If the market rents
of investment properties had been 5% higher/
lower, loss before income tax for the year
ended 31 December 2024 would have been
approximately RMB83,021,000 lower/higher.

Impairment of receivables from operating
leases

Except for certain receivables from tenants
with specific credit risk the Group adopts an
individual impairment assessment approach,
the Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for receivables from operating leases.
The provision rates are based on the past due
days for groupings of various tenants’ segments
that have similar patterns. The expected loss
rates are based on the corresponding historical
credit losses and adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the tenants to
settle the receivables.

Significant judgement and estimation are
required in determining the ECLs of receivables
from operating leases. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be
representative of tenant’s actual default in the
future.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

\:: NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4, EREEFTRAE 2

(b)

(c)

REBEEK (hE) ERAR

REMENDFE

WEMED R FERGEERITE
TE oo HET RBREBZFBERKE
4FEE - WEEDEZRF
B, /L 5% @ BIE & 2024
FI2AG1IALEFEZHRABEM
AIEBEER D B mH AR
83,021,0007T °

KERERYRIRNRE

BEo AEREERRRNESZ
FEMFRIRSN - AR E 2 R A E R
BEFHE T EIN  REEAREERRE
AEREHEERYGRNTERER
B8 o BB R TIZARE A BRLUR
AH 2 B P 7 8B4 Bl B E 2 H
BFmE - BHEREBRIIZARE
BENEREBREMEBERFE - AR
RE R RATEENZERERRE
B ZERERFEREPBERIK
TERIRES] °

BELEERIGRNERERE
1BEFZA NERHE AR - BHME
REBRENSELBERBR LI
AR - ANEEBEERER
EERAMEEAOR TR - HRAE
REHEFRREREQNBR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers are the
Board that makes strategic decisions, and reviews
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management
has determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

For management purposes, the Group is organized
into business units based on their business
operations and has two reportable operating
segments as follows:

° Department store business — operation of
department stores;

o Others — property business and unallocated
items, comprising mainly head office overheads.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of net profit. At the
Group level, no information regarding segment assets
and segment liabilities is provided to the Board.

The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are
mainly attributable to the market in the PRC. No
geographical information is therefore presented.

7 EBE

ITBLERRERFLHEBBRARNES
g REEAEENANRSATEE
BNOEER EERECREELHMSE
HEREDHE -

RERME  AEERELELERS
S76 (- 3 B A RS S
mT -

s RBEEEB-KLBEE:

s Ht-FMEXBKNRIEERER
TEEEAMRERM -

EEERBF RN EFEHELE D

Z)
MEF - RAKEER  HEREES
REBEIMEEL Y HMABENER -

AEBHUARFERDEETERBR
BT o Bt - i S FIER .
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

148

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

The segment information is as follows:

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with
customers

At a point in time

Revenue from other sources

Rental income

Other operating revenue

Other gains/(losses) — net

Fair value loss on investment
properties

Purchase of and changes in
inventories

Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation and amortization
expenses

Net impairment losses on
financial assets

Other operating expenses — net

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs
Finance costs — net

Loss before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

(Loss)/Profit for the year

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  mEBREH

e BT R AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2024

DEER #)

DEERAT

Year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12A31ALLFEE

Department
store
business Others Group
BEEER Hit AEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®TrT AR%Tr
A 200,295 - 200,295
ERPARWA
EE R EHER 12,790 - 12,790
E A SRR
He WA 187,505 - 187,505
H b g A 27,150 536 27,686
Hipless, /(BB FHE 25,400 (7,874) 17,526
BEMENNTEEE
(139,483) = (139,483)
GFERBERES
(11,571) - (11,571)
EERAMFZ (31,800) (5,074) (36,874)
e REIHEMT
(1,988) (367) (2,355)
CREEMNRBAEBETE
(550) (1,004) (1,554)
H b 5 558 (84,872) (941) (85,813)
REBR (17,419) (14,724) (32,143)
B E WA 6,219 560 6,779
BhE AN (54,488) (21,406) (75,894)
BhE R A F B (48,269) (20,846) (69,115)
FRETSHATE B (65,688) (85,570) (101,258)
s (X)), HKE (58) 67,552 67,494
FE(BER) Wi (65,746) 31,982 (33,764)
{ (hE]) AMEAT  ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 E i %




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with
customers

At a point in time

Revenue from other sources

Rental income

Other operating revenue

Other gains/(losses) — net

Fair value loss on investment
properties

Purchase of and changes in
inventories

Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation and amortization
expenses

Net impairment losses on
financial assets

Net impairment losses on
prepayment

Other operating expenses — net

Operating profit/(loss)

Finance income
Finance costs
Finance costs — net

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 fE3keE  m= H S (

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

WA

EPARKA
ERX—RHER

H o HRUA

HE WA

H g2 A
HAnlas,/ (B51R) %5
BREMENRFHERBR
FERE N

BERMFEX
WERBIHEFX

TREENREEBRFER
BN KIAMREEREFE

H A 82 A SOF R
e ws (5ER)
BEUWA

BB A

BB RAFER

BR AT 1S B AT S 18
PRIS B %

FEBR

5. 2®ER @
Year ended 31 December 2023
EHE2023F 12 A31HILFE
Department
store

business Others Group
BEIEER Hh REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFIT ARBFIT ARBFIT
190,666 - 190,666
7,727 - 7,727
182,939 - 182,939
29,886 - 29,886
57,486 (84,643) (27,157)
(156,004) - (156,004)
(6,667) - (6,667)
(27,715) (6,412) (84,127)
(3,198) (434) (3,632)
(3,328) (201,164) (204,492)
- (62,950) (62,950)
(78,002) (3,859) (81,861)
3,124 (359,462) (356,338)
9,279 9,197 18,476
(563,062) (15,580) (68,642)
(43,783) (6,383) (50,166)
(40,659) (365,845) (406,504)
7,922 48,173 56,095
(32,737) (317,672) (350,409)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

REVENUE
Rental income e WA
Direct sales BRHEE

Commission from concessionaire sales HE&HERS

There was one single customer contributing over 10%
of the Group’s total revenue for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

6. REVENUE

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREETT

187,505 182,939
12,328 7,396
462 331
200,295 190,666

H E2024F K 2023F12 A31 H IFF
B —NEBEFEBBARAERK
U AT10%IA £ o

7. HMKEWA

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Promotion, administration and {288~ TTEI R EBUA

management income

Credit card handling fees for EEMENZHARFES

concessionaire sales
Government grant BRI #H b

26,985 22,681
16 516

685 6,689
27,686 29,886

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  mE B &R (FE) BRAE  ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F/E &
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 8. HfbWz ~(&518)F8E
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBEFTT
Gains from modification of leases (a) BEHE W 37,829 30,593
(Losses)/gains from write-off of SREEE S I E A RE IR
long aging prepayments and KRR 2 (B1B), kS
trade and other payables(b) (5,354) 25,186
Net gains on disposal of HEWB QRN FURE
subsidiaries ((c), Note 35(d)(if) ((c) * B1#£35(d)(i)) = 7,245
Deposits forfeited for terminated ER FRE R mLR s
lease agreements %& 437 2,588
Provision of impairment for properties BEESHEWENRE
held for sale (Note 23) B (M i#23) (1,000) (96,000)
Losses on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment B EE (2,609) (121)
Provision for legal claims ERREER (5,546) -
Fair value changes recognized BAFEFABRIES
in FVPL (Note 20) TREECANTE
e (ffat20) (4,350) -
Others Hh (1,881) 3,352
17,526 (27,157)
(@) A net gains of RMB37,829,000 was @ 2024 FHRFWNTARE

37,829,0007C * TERHRAE
% B A S S AR 5 &R ET TORAR
HrEAERE - WREFRIEREK
MARIEEREEAEGEmME
oo 2023 F R FWm AR
30,593,000 @ *£ B 2 A% [F £ 6
BERBASRTHABEER R
L ATE - WUREIR B REARFA
AR IERAERE -

recognized in 2024 mainly due to that the
Group and the lessor of two Stores entered
into the supplementary lease agreement for
rent reduction. The gains resulted from the
derecognition of related lease liabilities as
the lessee. A net gain of RMB30,593,000
was recognized in 2023, mainly as the Group
and the lessor of Xingning Store entered
into the supplementary lease agreement for
rent reduction. The gain resulted from the
derecognition of lease liabilities as leasee.

ZEE 5 REMEBTRIAN KKK
BEREEEEPNH - AFEAARRD
SEMAE -

(b) These long aging prepayments and trade and (b)
other payables are beyond the legal retroactive
period and are not expected to be used or paid
in the future.

(c) A net gain of RMB7,245,000 was recognized (c) 2023F10A WMRMBLARIEH
upon disposals of two subsidiaries in October RE EmMBERFRERARE
2023. 7,245,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

EXPENSES BY NATURE 9. MMEISENRX
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBFT
Net impairment losses on SREENRBERE
financial assets (Note 3.1(b)) SFRE (M3 1(b) 1,554 204,492
Net impairment losses on prepayments T8/ 318 &) Rl E &5 18 % 58 = 62,950
Utilities NEES 3 58,021 59,724
Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) EB@AFZ(HiE10) 36,874 34,127
Depreciation and amortization expenses 7€ & #4551 % 2,355 3,632
Other tax expenses HuHRmEEx 9,099 5,655
Purchase of and changes in FERBENMEE(WT22)
inventories (Note 22) 11,571 6,667
Cleaning fee BRMAX 2,507 2,630
Auditor’s remuneration 1% £ B 457 B
- Audit services — ZH RS 1,380 2,350
— Other services — H A AR %% 600 800
Office expenses PR 1,776 1,804
Advertising costs EERA 443 688
Business travel expenses N 450 548
Bank charges WITIRE 136 161
Transportation expenses EEfY 20 34
Net foreign exchange gains b 5 Uk 2= (1,487) (5,142)
Other expenses Hpx 12,868 12,609
Total expenses MRS 138,167 393,729
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10. EEEFHEX
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREEF T
Wages and salaries ITERF 31,348 29,335
Social security costs AR AR 3,444 3,341
Severance payment BME 2,082 1,451
Total employee benefit expenses EERNFAZ B 36,874 34,127

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  mE & S8 (FE) AR E)
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

=g T E S

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

(continued)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 fE3keE  m= H S (

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
two (2023: one) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in note 38.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2023: four) individuals during the year are as

follows:

Basic salaries and allowances
Contributions to the retirement
scheme

EARFr & KRR
RAREH BB

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument band (in HK dollar)
HKD500,001 — HKD1,000,000

HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000

<& E(ET)

500,001 L&
1,000,000 7T

1,000,001/8 T E
1,500,000 7T

(a)

~A] SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

10. EEEABE X (#)

EEBREHFAL

REBPREANTELZESHFALTE
2B (20235 1 Z)EERE Y
B4 SN 38 DM R - B RS
FER E #2342 (20234 1 48 & &

FATHOFBFBOT -
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREETT
2,153 2,753
66 94
2,219 2,847

e FATEBE

Number of individuals

AB

2024 2023
2 3
1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 11. BE WA R KA
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEF T
Finance income & WA
Interest income from finance leases RERER BUWA 5,893 8,858
Interest income from related party W g 75 I B A - 8,473
Interest income from bank deposits RITF A F B IA 886 1,145
6,779 18,476
Finance costs BB AR
Interest expenses on operating leases  {EAEFAA ZKLHE
as the lessee B (33,652) (33,228)
Interest expenses on bank loans RITEFRFERE (42,242) (35,414)
(75,894) (68,642)
Finance costs — net BB R AR F R (69,115) (50,166)
SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED s F &40 () AEAT ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [ $R&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FiEBiE R

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBEF T

Current income tax BVEAFT1S At
- PRC corporate income tax — B EME (76,484) (81,922)
Deferred income tax (Note 19) EIEFTSFL (A2t 19) 8,990 25,827
(67,494) (56,095)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the statutory tax rates applicable to the subsidiaries
comprising the Group as follows:

RE B R P S T BT E 1R 0 R R B
RERERANERAIEB ZMBARZ
EEREAEMGEIEmEBED T

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®EFTT
Loss before income tax BRETISEIATE 1B (101,258) (406,504)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% B E25% EAFIB
(2023: 25%) (20234 : 25%) (25,315) (101,626)
Tax impact of: INTEERETE
— Expenses not deductible for ROk b3
tax purposes 380 73
— Unrecognized temporary — REERE R
differences (d) ZH(d) 250 24,000
- Utilized and unrecognized tax losses  —{Ff &k AMER
HIAER (42,809) 21,458
Income tax credit FrisfiE e (67,494) (56,095)
ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[S#R4 e B 1208 (hE) ARAR) SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED 155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

13.

156

Fae)

B 75 ¥ 2% B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

(@) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the (a)
Cayman Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands.

(b) Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided (b)
as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes
on overseas profits have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in eI
which the Group operates, based on existing
interpretations and practices in

legislation,
respect thereof.

(c) The applicable income tax rate is 25% for the (c)

Group’s subsidiaries generally.

(d) The difference mainly is caused by the (d)
impairment of Zhuhai Xiangyao Real Estate
Development Company’s (“Zhuhai Xiangyao”)

properties held for sale.

12. FiBHE R 2)

%R 0

EARRBERT -
BRI -
AEmET

BTHEHE -

R ED5% o

FFHEWRRIE

7?5%3““5?];%%5’]%% AR -
BAGHNEIANRSHESNME

AEBMB QRN —RE

NE

AR AEERNFALBERBESL
B LS F
B INE MR IRRIER
MEBEREIREE
BEREIIRZEREERER

HAFTEH

2 B O 22 R RO A R A R 3
BERRAR([BREBHE])FEN

(e) The Group is not in the scope of the OECD Pillar ) AEETBREAMABME-_SHR
Two model rules. HHRAMBAFEE -
LOSSES PER SHARE 13. BREE
(a) Basic losses per share (a) BREXERE
2024 2023
Losses attributable to owners of the RARa)gEA NEREE
Company (in RMB thousand) (AR®ETFIT) (33,764) (340,982)
Weighted average number of B BT m AR N 5 &
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (FR%) 2,495,000 2,495,000
Basic losses per share BIRENREE
(RMB per share) (FBRARE)
(0.01) (0.14)
(b) The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary (b) AEERAFEDEBETELEE

shares in issue during this year, so the diluted
earnings per share equals the basic earnings per

share.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

LEiR
A& B A o

REBEEK (hE) ERAR

At SREEWRERET

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [E %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS )

Year ended 31 December 2023

As at 1 January 2023

Capitalised subsequent expenditure
Transfer from property, plant and

equipment

Transfer from lease receivable
Transfer to lease receivables
Addition upon lease extension

Net losses from fair value
adjustment

As at 31 December 2023

Year ended 31 December 2024

As at 1 January 2024

Capitalised subsequent expenditure

=g T E S

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BZ2023F12A31H1E
FE

2023F181R

HigMT BT ER

W - WEREREEA

HHERKFRBA
BEHERKFR
HERME A FEZIEM
AHERBZ BRFR

72023F12A31H

BZ2024F12A318 1t
FE

M2024F181R

HigMT BT ER

Net losses from fair value adjustment A F{EFRE Y 8% 5E

As at 31 December 2024

i (PED) BRAA]

N2024512831 1

pua
li!

14. REW*

Right-of-use
Buildings assets Total
BF EREEE #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
1,047,600 637,647 1,685,247
4,981 743 5,724
199,200 - 199,200
- 30,274 30,274
- (16,777) (16,777)
- 50,468 50,468
(97,151) (58,853) (156,004)
1,154,630 643,502 1,798,132
1,154,630 643,502 1,798,132
179 1,582 1,761
(49,089) (90,394) (139,483)
1,105,720 554,690 1,660,410

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| v_\A H J &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

/750

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE (&)

()  The Group’s investment properties are located
in Shenzhen, Lufeng, Haifeng, Luhe and
Xingning of the Guangdong Province and
Changsha of Hunan Province of the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties falls under level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy.

(i) As at 31 December 2024, part of the buildings
were secured against certain long-term bank
borrowings (note 32).

(i) Right-of-use assets which had been subleased
out under financing leases were transferred
from investment properties to finance lease
receivables. The finance lease receivables were
transferred to right-of-use assets upon the early
termination of finance lease arrangement.

The Group’s investment properties represented
owned shopping malls and leased ones as ROU
and are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties through leasing.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023 by an independent
and professionally qualified valuer who holds a
recognized relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations of the investment
properties valued. The investment properties, carried
at fair value, were valued by using unobservable
inputs of fair value hierarchy Level 3. There were no
transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

() AEEEEWECATEERLR
YIRS R - T RS B
HERY -

AREEENE? AFEBRAT
EEREIE -

(i) 72024F12A318 - 5T KH
RITERA B D EFIEE R (M5
32) ¢

(i) BWEAESHLNEHRAEEERE
EYEEAERFERER - IR
MEAEFNRERELTHRENR
IFREAFREEE -

REBNREYEAEAELAR
XEBBYPLNEEDE  H
FRANAERASEEEAMERER
BEMEREYE LR EER

<
S o
T

REFEZEERRE

REBEZHEWMER2024F 220234
12831 HABLEES ERHEMETT
HE - BEERUMNBEEEEER I
BEEMTEREDEME 2 ([HELER -
MAFEARNRENERBAFES
WEZPORAIERGABREITHE -
REERNNEE— - = =B HEHE
;ggo

¢ (fhEl) AT ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A
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A RRME il

For the year ended 31 December 2024 \
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE (&)

Valuation techniques
Valuations are based on:

Direct comparison approach assuming sale of each of
these properties in its existing state with the benefit
of vacant possession. By making reference to sales
transactions as available in the relevant market,
comparable properties in close proximity have
been selected and adjustments have been made to
account for the difference in factors such as locations
and property size; and

Income approach which using discounted cash
flow (“DCF”) projections taking into account the
current rents of the property interests and the
reversionary potentials of the tenancies, term yield
and reversionary yield are then applied respectively to
derive the market value of the property as significant
unobservable inputs and showed as below:

Term yields Reflecting current market
assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of
cash flows

Reversionary yields  Based on current and expected
future market conditions after
expiry of any current lease

Market rents Based on location, type and
quality of the properties and
supported by the terms of
any existence lease, other
contracts and external
evidence such as current
market rents for similar
properties

fh{E A

RETIRRL T BT ¢

RABERLEE  BRZAEVEZER
BAREHE - R2EBAREMBENAIE
HBHER S - EEMIMENATEL
BYMERARNERMERBERNENE
RELHAER K

FRARSEERMERSR((FRRE
FFER > TEBIVENZRES -

REDPEANENHEENERES -

HRKERMERRSRRENZDE
WS EBEEAENTAIBRE AR
UNN N

EflEE RREFTEHRSAE
OB ] N HEE M RO AT

CfkER EREEREQDER
Wémﬁﬁﬁiﬁm%#

ﬁ

ikt ;1EA¥W§§HTLLEi |AEIAN
g8 USHEARAHR
1£mA H A& K ASNED
TWiﬁ(WW@M%
1=y: ‘JW%?E&)

H

/m}:ﬂ

%ﬂﬁw
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

14.

160

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.
Unobservable Range of
Description inputs unobservable inputs
it FTBRBAE FTBRGAEHE
Owned shopping Term vyields 4.7%-6.6%
malls and leased ~ FHIZE = (2023: 4.5%-6.5%)
ones as ROU
BEEDHOM
THEMEAERE Reversionary yields 5%-7%
iz 0] 55 i 2 3K (2023: 5%-7%)
Market rents (RMB/ 22-292
Square meter/month)  (2023: 33-294)
miniEE
(T/¥HX/R)

These unobservable inputs correlate to each other.
Term yields are typically lower than reversionary
yield given the lower cashflow risk and market
uncertainties. Reversionary yield should theoretically
tie with market rents, if an above-market market rent
adopted, the reversionary yield should be higher as
well to reflect the cashflow realization risks.

(a) Rental income from investment properties

BEWE #)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

TABEHAEEQATENBE

The higher the term yields,
the lower the fair value

HRKEERS - A FERE

The higher the reversionary yields, the
lower the fair value

EHEKEEES - D FESE

The higher the market rents, the higher
the fair value

misHEEE A FEER

ELER R B m i AR B REEE o EERNIR
enBERBEMTE TEES - BRI
HEBAFTEREDHEREE  -BmlE - E©
Wes Rz EmigH e - IREK
AERrmErmisiHe  BHEREED

EZER  ARMBSREHRER -

\

Ay
S

(a) REWMEHESWA

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT

Rental income el A 187,505 182,939
Direct operating expenses from HMEEEHS WAL
properties that generated rental BEEEEER
income (117,295) (118,310)
70,210 64,629

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no
unprovided contractual obligations for future
repairs and maintenance (2023: nil).

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  sRE B &%

M2024F12 A31H » NEE W &
BRARREELRENRBEHELLD
E1E(2023%F : &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As at 1 January 2023
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2023

Opening net book amount

Additions

Depreciation charge

Transfers to investment
properties(cost)

Transfers to investment
properties(depreciation)

Disposals (cost)

Disposals (depreciation)

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2023

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2024

Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge
Disposals (cosf)
Disposals (depreciation)

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2024
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [ 45

15. 1% - BMERRE

Machinery ~ Furniture
and  and other Motor  Leasehold Right of
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles improvement  use assets Others Total
FHR il
BT HERRE  HURE AE NERE  RREEE it Eh
RMBOOD  RVBOOD ~ RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RVBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBION0
ARETL  ARETT  ARBTR  ARBTI  ARETR  AREfn  ARETR  ARETR
R2023%181R
i 216,337 28,674 10,883 6107 120625 3819 1750 397199
2iE (24054 (27,389) (7,866) (821) (129,339 (1,551) (139) (197415
EERE 192,283 1285 3017 286 27 2,268 %8 199784
BZ2023E12831A 1
EE
ENEETE 192,083 1285 3017 286 27 2,268 %8 199784
HE - 3% 19 5 25 1645 - 2,268
S (7%9) (450) (494) (95) (45) (1,460) (159) (3457)
EZRENZ(NE)
(182,678) - - - - - - (182679
EZRENZ(HE)
1,017 - - - - - - 1,017
& (E) - (821) (£09) - (131) (1,509) 720) (3590)
HE(FE) - 779 37 - 51 887 676 2780
ELEEYE 19,867 1127 2520 1% 47 1,831 16 2,124
2023512531 R
i 33,658 28,186 10,493 6112 129759 3,956 103 213198
ZiiE (13791  (7,059) 7973 (5916 (129332 (2,125 (678 (187,074)
KE3E 19,867 1,127 2520 1% 41 1,831 15 26124
BZ2024E12831A 1
EE
ENEMEE 19,867 1127 2520 1% 1 1,831 156 26,124
e - - 3 2 - 501 - 539
TERE (252) (430) (289) (130) (136) (915) (103) (2,249)
& (E) (6,064) (801) (1,30 (1,073) - - (39) 9,.279)
& (&) 2464 781 1219 1,019 - - % 5,578
EERERE 16,015 677 2250 14 291 1417 49 20,713
2024512531 R
i 27,504 27,385 9207 504 129759 4457 0% 204458
ZiiE (11579 (26,708) 6,977) (5,027) (129,468 (3,040) (046)  (183,745)
KEE 16,015 677 2250 14 21 1417 H 0013
mEA SRR (FE) AR2A A SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED 161
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16.

162

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As at 1 January 2023
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2023
Opening net book amount
amortization charge

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2023
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2024
Opening net book amount
amortization charge

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2024
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net book amount

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  mE & S8 (FE) AR E)

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

16. L EE

HA2023F1H1H
FAS
RETEESH

SRERE

B E2023F12A31HLLEE

FHRREFE
BIHE

FEREFE
7A2023F12H31H
RS

RETEESH

SRE R E

B E2024F12A31BLLEE

FHRREFE
BIHE M

FHEMFE
7A2024%F12H31H
R AR

R EESH

SRE R E

Computer
software
BT

RMB’000
ARBTT

36,404
(35,907)

497

497
(175)

322

36,404
(36,082)

322

322
(106)

216

36,404
(36,188)

216
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

17. SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 are
set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares/
registered capital that are held directly by the Group,
and the proportion of ownership interests held equals
the voting rights held by the Group. The country of

17. B2 A

incorporation or registration is also their principal

place of business.

TXHEHYAEBER2024F 128318 K
MEAR - BRBBIEEIN
AEEEEFAEZLER FMELE
B - BB B EERLOIZERN
REBRFH 2 IRERE o cEMa 7 skak it
BERMAHETBLEMT -

H A E i

Particulars Ownership interest
Principal of issued or held by
Place of incorporation  activities and registered  Ownership interest non-controlling
Name of entity and form of legal entity place of operation share capital  held by the Group interests
EMALBH IERK BESIE] FERERREL
giRtH REEREA RERBE ifMRAHE FRESE ERRER RRERL
2024 2023 2024 2023
Shirble Department Store Investment Hong Kong, limited liability - Investment holding in HKD1 100% 100% - -
Limited (“Shirble Hong Kong') company Hong Kong
REASRERRAD(AEEE]) EE BRELLT RERETRERR 187
Shirble Department Store (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong, limited liability - Investment holding in USD1,200 100% 100% - -
Limited company Hong Kong
HEAS(BR)ARAT Eh BRELLT RERETRARR 1,200%7
Shenzhen Shirble Department Store The PRC, wholly foreign  Operation and HKD484,254,600 100% 100% - -
Co., Lid. (“Shirble Shenzhen”) owned enterprises management of
department stores in
the PRC
AMIFEREERAD(ZERII) hE 2R RPEEENERAGE 464254 60037
Shenzhen Shirble Chain Store Limited The PRC, limited liability ~ Operation and RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - -
Liability Company company management of
(“Shirble Chain Store”) department stores in
the PRC
MIREEEEXERARAT hE - ARELAT RAEEENERAERE N
((mEEs) 100,000,007
Changsha Shirble Department Store The PRC, limited liabiity  Operation and RMB30,000,000 100% 100% - -
Limited Liability Company company management of
department stores in
the PRC
ROTREERARAR hE - AREEAT RPEEENERAGE N
30,000,0007

EERER (PE) ARAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[Z3k% 77
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17. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

164

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

17. B 2R (#)

\ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars Ownership interest
Principal of issued or held by
Place of incorporation  activities and registered  Ownership interest non-controlling
Name of entity and form of legal entity place of operation share capital  held by the Group interests
ALY ITER BEIE FEREREEL
ERZR REEERYA REXHE ihkAEE ARERAZERERER BRkER
2024 2028 2024 2023
Shenzhen Ruizhuo Trading Gompany The PRC, limited liablity  Trading in the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Limited company
MITREE HERLT TE - EREAAT ReEETES AEH
10,000,0007
Dongguan Shirble Department Store The PRC, limited liablity ~ Operation of department  RMB30,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company stores in the PRC
RETREREARLT hE EREAAT RAEEERERE AEH
30,000,0007
Shanwei Shirble Department Store The PRC, wholly foreign ~ Operation and HKD230,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. owned enterprises management of
department stores in
the PRC
IEREREERAR hE 2OVELR PAESENERARE 230,000,000
Luhe Shirble Department Store Co., Ltd.  The PRC, wholly foreign ~ Operation and RMB200,000,000 100% 100% - -
(“Luhe Shirble”) owned enterprises management of
department stores in
the PRC
ElREREERAA (TS hE - RNELE RREEENEEAEE AE®
200,000,0007
LuFeng Shirble Department Store The PRC, wholly foreign ~ Operation and RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. (‘Lufeng Shirble”) owned enterprises management of
department stores in
the PRC
EEREREERAA(EERE)) hE - RHERE RREEENERARE AE®
10,000,0007
Baotong (BVI) Company Limited British Virgin Island, limited  Investment holding in USD1 100% 100% - -
liability company British Virgin Island
IBRAHS ARER NEBRIESES 1%
Ad REBR

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

REBEEK (hE) ERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

17. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17. B 2R (#)

Particulars Ownership interest
Principal of issued or held by
Place of incorporation  activities and registered  Ownership interest non-controlling
Name of entity and form of legal entity place of operation share capital  held by the Group interests
AL IEER BEAY FEREREEL
BRER RtERRYS REXHY iAfRA#E AEERE EREER FRRRL
2024 2023 2024 2023
Baotong E-commerce (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability Trading in Hong Kong HKD1 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company
BRERETABARLA BE BRELLA REREESR 187
Shenzhen Qianhai Baotong E-commerce  The PRC, limited liabilty  Trading in the PRC RMB505,061 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company
AIFEERE T ERARAR hE - ARALAT RPEETES AE#505,0517C
Shenzhen Qingyi Information Consulting  The PRC, limited liabiity  Provision of consulting RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company services in the PRC
MIFESEEEABRAT P8 BRELLT PEREERRE  AR%1,000,0007T
Shenzhen Baocheng Technology The PRC, limited liabilty  Provision of consulting ~ RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company services in the PRC
AmERHRARAT P8 BRELLT ReERHRERS AR
100,000,00070
Shenzhen Baoruntong Creative Design ~ The PRC, limited liability ~ Decoration designinthe  RMB200,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company PRC
MmEBREIERAERAT P8 BRELLT RPEETRERT AR
200,000,0007
Shenzhen i-Shirble Business Development  The PRC, limited liability  Trading in the PRC RMB1,650,000 - 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company
MIERERRERARAA PE - ARELAT RPEETES AB&#%1,650,0007T
Shenzhen Baolong Business Development - The PRC, limited liability  Provision of consulting RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company services in the PRC
MIEERZERARAA b8 BRELLT ReERHBERS AR
10,000,0007

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & 7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

17. B 2R (#)

Particulars Ownership interest
Principal of issued or held by
Place of incorporation  activities and registered  Ownership interest non-controlling
Name of entity and form of legal entity place of operation share capital  held by the Group interests
ALY ITER BEIE FEREREEL
ERZR REEERYA REXHE ihkAEE ARERAZERERER BRkER
2024 2028 2024 2023
Shenzhen Baoxin Software Development ~ The PRC, limited liability ~ Software developmentin -~ RMBG6,600,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company the PRC
MITERTEHEERAT TE - EREAAT RAEETEARE  ARH6,6000007
Cosmic Favour Limited British Virgin Investment holding in USD1 100% 100% - -
Island, limited liabllity British Virgin Island
company
EERRAT EBRARES AREE REBRXESER %7
Rl REBR
Lawbo Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability - Investment holding in HKD1 100% 100% = -
company Hong Kong
BERABRAR B AREELT WEBETRERR 1%
Huaian Runleju Engineering Construction  The PRC, limited liabiity ~ Construction/ RMB20,000,000 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company Management and
Consulting services
in the PRC
ERMELE TEERBRAT HE - EREALT R RR TRIET A%
BRI AR 20,000,0007C
Zhuhai Xiangyao Real Estate Development - The PRC, limited liability ~ Property development RMB78,000,000 100% 100% = -
Company company business in the PRC
HERERHERSERAT T8 BREEAT ReEE R E A%
HRER 78,000,0007C
(a) Shenzhen i-Shirble Business Development Co., @ RNEFRBEHEZRBEBRAFTER
Ltd was deregistered in 2024. 2024F ik ey o
(o) As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were (b) 20244 [20235F12H31H - K

SER B ERIFER AR

no non-controlling interests that were material
to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 18. BRI EHNERTITA
CATEGORY
The Group holds the following financial instruments: REEREATERIA
At
amortized
Financial assets Note cost At FVPL Total
R RATE
SREE Htat A& FFABE BEt

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBETRT

2024
Trade and other receivables 8 5 K& E ith g 5k 18
excluding prepayments (T EIEEMNKIE) 21 172,603 - 172,603
Restricted bank deposits ZRRHIRITER 24 12,340 = 12,340
Cash and cash equivalents NEREESEEY 25 43,091 - 43,091
228,034 - 228,034
2023
Financial assets at FVPL WA EFABRZ
TRIEE 20 - 4,350 4,350
Trade and other receivables & 5 & E fib g Yg 5118
excluding prepayments (TBEEENFIA) 21 185,381 - 185,381
Restricted bank deposits ZBRHIERITER 24 17,045 - 17,045
Cash and cash equivalents & RIRESEEY 25 50,127 - 50,127
252,553 4,350 256,903
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 18. HERIDEHNEM T E (%)
CATEGORY (continued)
The Group holds the following financial instruments AEBBEUATEHMIA : (&)
(continued):
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities Note amortized cost
R
RAGTEZ
c@AasE HtaF EA= =R
RMB’000
AREEFTT
2024
Lease liabilities HEGE 29 561,939
Trade and other payables excluding B 5 N E M EFRIE
non-financial liabilities (TEEEemEE) 116,531
Borrowings RN 32 558,054
1,236,524
2023
Lease liabilities HEHE 29 644,113
Trade and other payables excluding B 5 R HAFEFIR
non-financial liabilities (TEiEFemEas) 105,978
Borrowings EEN 32 556,473
1,306,564
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the REmERRAERYH 2 &XERRERSE
reporting period is the carrying amount of each class AEFeHEEKRMEE -

of financial assets mentioned above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

19. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 19. BB
(@) The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred (@) AEERTEFRESHEERELERS
tax liabilities of the Group is as follows: BaEINOT :
2024 2023
Deferred tax assets (i): IRIEPTSIHEE()
- To be recovered within —12{8 A AR 1E
12 months 987 1,594
- To be recovered after —F12M8 B 18R 1E
12 months 1,635 2,236
2,622 3,830
2024 2023
Deferred tax liabilities (ii): EEPAISTE ()
- To be recovered within — 1218 A "Ik 1E
12 months - -
— To be recovered after — 1218 18Ik 1E
12 months 88,176 80,394
88,176 80,394
(b) The movement on net deferred income tax (o) EIEFEEFENRPESNAT -
account is as follows:
(i)  Deferred tax assets: () BRIEFEHEE
2024 2023
The balance comprises temporary B ERFEZZHRN ¢
differences attribute to:
— Depreciation on property, - BEX
plant and equipment RETE 363 476
- Accrued expenses, deferred —EEHY - BRI
revenue and others WA K Eo At 625 885
— Lease liabilities —MHEAaRE 140,485 161,028
— Impairment provision —BEEE 1,634 2,469
143,107 164,858
Offset of deferred tax liabilities MRS AR T B IR AT
pursuant to set-off provisions FriSHi B &R H (140,485) (161,028)
Net deferred tax assets Pt & EF5E 2,622 3,830
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L AlA

19. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

170

(b)

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

19. IEEEMEH(2)

The movement on net deferred income tax (o) EIEFEFFBARSEFHOT :
account is as follows: (continued) (%)
(i)  Deferred tax liabilities iy FISHAETFHE

2024 2023

The balance comprises temporary #ZEBIEGERFEZZHM ¢
differences attribute to:

— Fair value change of —EMERN
investment properties N EEE 70,494 56,771
— Accrual on rental income —REHEFTER
based on the straight-line FERT S UA
method 5,750 5,690
— Deferred tax arising from —KACER T BHRES
adoption of IFRS 16 AERI ) 281657
FT 3| iR HYIEIE
ey 152,417 178,961
228,661 241,422
Offset of deferred tax assets 1A B R T B R AT
pursuant to set-off FrigHi & ER IR 5
provisions (140,485) (161,028)
Net deferred tax liabilities sl & & 558 88,176 80,394

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  sREB & (FE) BRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

19. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

(c) The movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into

190. IEZEFRSEH(&)

) FARLEMBEENMABNE
CREF R FA— 5 AR AR A

consideration the offsetting of balances within BRI T ¢
the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax assets
BEWGEE
Accrued
expenses, Depreciation
deferred  on property,
revenue and plantand  Impairment Lease
others  equipment provision liabilities Total
iR VES
BEWAR BER
Eft RERE RERE HESE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
As at 1 January 2023 20231 A1R 3,101 573 38,327 172,961 214,962
Charged to profit or loss AR (2,216) 97) (35,858) (11,933) (50,104)
As at 31 December 2023 82023124318 885 476 2,469 161,028 164,858
As at 1 January 2024 202451 A1A 885 476 2,469 161,028 164,858
Charged to profit or loss TABR (260) (119) (835) (20,549) (21,751)
As at 31 December 2024 82024128318
625 363 1,634 140,485 143,107
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

19. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

(c) The movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

190. IEZEFRSEH(&)

) FARLEMBEENMABNE
CREF R FA— 5 AR AR A
BRIBEH) T : (4)

(continued)
Deferred tax liabilities
EEHERE
Accrual on

Fair value rental income  Deferred tax

change of based onthe arising from

investment  straight-line  adoption of
properties method IFRS 16 Total

A

(EIRR BT 76

REEE)

REKT F165:1

REMEN STERER EREN
ATLEED HemA HEERR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
As at 1 January 2023 202351818 68,375 7,671 182,782 258,828
Credited to profit or loss REZEE (11,604) (1,981) (3,821) (17,400)
As at 31 December 2023  42023F12H31H 56,771 5,690 178,961 241,422
As at 1 January 2024 202451818 56,771 5,690 178,961 241,422
Credited to profit or loss RERER 18,728 60 (26,544) (12,761)
As at 31 December 2024  A2024F12831H 70,494 5,750 152,417 228,661
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 \I
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

19. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 19. BB (&)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law in
the PRC, 10% withholding tax is levied on foreign
investors (5% for foreign investors who are registered
in Hong Kong provided they meet certain criteria) in
respect of dividend distributions arising from a foreign
investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January
2008. The Group does not have any plan to require its
PRC subsidiaries to distribute their retained earnings
and intends to retain them to operate and expand
its business in the PRC. Accordingly, no deferred
income tax liability was accrued as at the end of each
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2024, certain subsidiaries of
the Group have not recognized deferred tax assets
in respect of cumulative tax losses carried forward
of RMB326,795,000 (2023: RMB456,158,000)
which will expire within 5 years under the current
tax regulation. The cumulative tax losses have not
been recognized as a deferred tax asset as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilized will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

BRECEMSHE  IRREEAR
GVE D ER2008F 1 A1 H 1B BREA % A
FTEEMREDRA10%E N (5
EREECRHNINEREEMS  WHEE
TR - BENE%) o ANEE A EEE
SREPBEMBARPEHRE AL -
TEERBHAFELKERIEEHLZE
%o At RERRBRTEBELET
FISfHiasE -

R2024%F 12 A31H » K&EEETH
BRBYARRBERITRIEERBERN
SERNEPZRAFEERLEE AR
¥ 326,795,000 7T ( 2023 FF : A R #&
456,158,0007C ) R IE LR IA & & -
MR BB TAABER B S R AR
KB AR PR E R m A 0] A DA 8 /65
B MY EERRAHEBBAELTCH
HAE °
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L AlA

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20.
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

174

As at 1 January 2023

Currency translation difference

As at 31 December 2023

As at 1 January 2024

Fair value change recognized in profit

or loss (Note 8)

As at 31 December 2024

RN2023F181H
SN R R

720235F12H31H

A2024%F181H
NEEEH AEE
(H#£8)

#2024%12H31H

(@) As at 31 December 2024, the financial assets at
FVPL were evaluated that the investment may
not be recovered, resulting in a provision for a

loss of RMB4,350,000.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

REBEEK (hE) ERAR

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

BAFEFABRRIRZER

=3
Unlisted
equity
securities Total
Lt
&N st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBFIT
4,288 4,288
62 62
4,350 4,350
4,350 4,350
(4,350) (4,350)

(a) M2024%12A31H @ AT ER
ABPIR 2 & mE E#ITAE

ZIRE R R ERYKE -

FHEERE

AR ¥ 4,350,000 °

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [E %



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [Z 1R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables (a)

Amount due from a related party

(Note 35(e)(ii)

Receivables from operating
leases (b)

Receivables from finance
leases (C)

Interest receivables

Lease deposits

Value-added tax recoverable

Other receivables

Less: provision for impairment
loss allowance (Note 3.1(b))

Financial assets at amortized
cost

Prepayments (d)

Total trade and other
receivables

of
2 ‘v
it
huny
iy
[}

i (PED) BRAA]

H 5 e GRTE(a)

FE U BEE 5 708
(B5£35(e)(ii))

T & R AR FIB (b)

BMEHEREFIE(C)
JEUHI S
HEZRS

A (e 2 SR AE R
H fth g W kIR

B OREEIE AT IR
(##£3.1(b))

MEBHERAGELZ
TREE

BT FIA()

B 5 MEAER
FIRKEEE

21. EFEWFEE - EMEWRRE

BN FRE

As of 31 December 2024

M20245F12H31H

Current Non-current Total
B HA JEEN R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTRT AR®TR AR%TxR
1,038 - 1,038
115,635 220,529 336,164
16,039 10,547 26,586
14,479 85,125 99,604
182 - 182

46 20,589 20,635
26,389 - 26,389
4,704 - 4,704
178,512 336,790 515,302
(119,583) (223,116) (342,699)
58,929 113,674 172,603

- 1,772 1,772

58,929 115,446 174,375
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21.

176

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 21. EFEWFEE - EMEWRRE
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS RENAFE )
(continued)

As of 31 December 2023
2023412 H31H

Current  Non-current Total
BN EA JEBNEA @Et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTIT ARBTT ARETET

Amount due from a related party JEUREE 5 218

(Note 35(e)(ii)) (H1a£35(e)(i)) - 336,164 336,164

Receivables from operating LT E U GRTE (b)
leases (b) 25,212 5,079 30,291

Receivables from finance BbE T E FEUFRIE(C)
leases (c) 16,988 97,653 114,641
Interest receivables WIS 171 - 171
Lease deposits HEZe 45 21,089 21,134
Value-added tax recoverable a5 Bl 7 1 (E F 22,353 - 22,353
Other receivables Eth eI GRIE 6,671 - 6,671
71,440 459,985 531,425

Less: provision for impairment & : E{EEEEEHTIE
loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)) (HtzE3.1(b)) (6,378) (339,666) (346,044)

Financial assets at amortized HBENAFTEZ

cost TREE 65,062 120,319 185,381
Prepayments SENNE e - 78 78
Total trade and other B 5 REMER

receivables FRIHAREE 65,062 120,397 185,459
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[EkE  mEE STk (FRE) BRAA

Trade receivables

The trade receivables are receivables from sales
to corporate customers.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables of
the Group based on invoice date is as follows:

0 - 30 days TE30K

The Group applies the IFRS Accounting
Standards simplified approach to measure
expected credit loss which was a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. As at 31 December 2024, no
impairment loss allowance was made based on
the management’s assessment (2023: nil) (note
3.1(b)).

All trade receivables are denominated in RMB
and their fair values approximated their carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

21. EFEWFEE - EMEWRRE
REMSRE 2

(a)

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

8 5 B

BHRIFARREEETFHH
ERYFR -

REBEZEZEH  AEENEHEK
RIBRREBE DT

As at 31 December

M12HA31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
1,038 -

A5 [ B A BRI A5 3R ZE RIS {E
FETEEMBEEEE  EAMA
ZZrEEGENEPEHEER
# o A2024F12A31H © IRIEE
EEFE - BEEDREEERE
(20234 : &) (FfI5E3.1(b)) °

FiBE SR RTEAAREEHE -
E N F{EEER20244F 220234
12 A31HWERMEEMRS
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HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets for property leases which
had been subleased out under operating leases
were recognized as receivables from operating
leases, including the accrual on rental income
based on the straight-line method.

The aging analysis of receivables from operating
leases of the Group based on due date is as

follows:

Current 23,000

0 - 30 days TE30K
31 - 90 days 31ZE90K
91 - 365 days 91 % 365K
More than 365 days HBiB365K

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
IFRS Accounting Standards 9.

As at 31 December 2024, a provision of
RMB4,927,000 (2023: RMB8,115,000) was
made against the gross amount of receivables
from operating lease (Note 3.1(b)).

\:: NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

21. EFEWFEE - EMEWRRE
RENAFE2)

(b)

KEMETENENYEHEERER
REERERIERRCEHER
WEKIE - BREEESEA -

RIBZHB  ARENKEHER
WORTBRER DATIAT -

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

23,000 22,761
341 1,348
692 776
909 2,495

1,644 2,911

26,586 30,291

AEBERBEERYHRELEAE
SRR E SR B ARHRTEHME
REKL -

HZE2024F12 8318 @ HKe
HEEKRERETRBEBEAR
#4,027,0007T (20234F :+ AR
8,115,0007t) (F45E3.1(b)) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 21.

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets for property leases which
had been subleased out under financing leases
were recognized as receivables from finance
leases.

The table below analyses the Group’s gross
investment in finance leases by relevant maturity
groupings at the end of each reporting period:

Finance lease receivables
Unguaranteed residual values

BMEHRER YR
TRERZEFSREE

Gross investment in finance leases FAMEIRE @5

ESEWRE - EERRIE
RENFE )

(c)

Less: unearned finance income Sk AR BREN AR E A

Net investment in finance leases MEHEREFR

Less: accumulated allowance for B REORERE
impairment

Finance lease receivables — net R E T E R W IR FRE

MEHETESHAMEEERH
REEWRSREHERYIA -

TRIERE RS HROAEEH
BAERImMAMASENRERER
BHERR

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

110,183 132,855
7,931 7,931
118,114 140,786
(18,510) (26,145)
99,604 114,641
(1,608) (1,765)
97,996 112,876
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HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

(c) (continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s gross

investment in finance leases by relevant maturity
groupings at the end of each reporting period:

Gross investment in finance leases  FIEAREIREE%E

— Within 1 year 1FR

— Between 1 and 2 years 122F 7 fH
— Between 2 and 3 years 2FE3F 2 E
— Between 3 and 4 years 3E4F 2 [E
- Between 4 and 5 years Nl
— Later than 5 years HBiEsF

(d) The remaining balance of the non-current
portion of prepayments representing the
Group’s cash paid to third parties for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  sREB & (FE) BRAF]

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

REMSRE 2

(c) (&)

21. EZEWFE - HiEWFIE

TRIZNE S RO 2 H
BapmoNAEENRERER

BHRE

As at 31 December

A12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMBFT
20,076 22,578
19,694 19,889
19,572 19,929
15,712 19,667
14,694 15,932
28,366 42,791
118,114 140,786

(d) FENFRIERIEIEE D HOBR T AERRTE
AEBERBEYME - BB MREA
REMEEXNTE=ZTHRE -
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22. INVENTORIES

Merchandise held for resale
Allowance for obsolescence

=g T E S

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

22, 78
As at 31 December
A12H31H

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
BIEEERNE M 5,250 5,814
fRESmEE (2,501) (2,782)
2,749 3,032

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognized
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as

follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [ 45

223

EEREAX W ABRZZEEHES
MR

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREFIT

BEEGFEZEAE 11,571 6,667
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23.

182

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 23.

Carrying amount of properties held for {5 H &% ~ BRE A
sale

Less: accumulated provision of B BETRERE
impairment (Note 8) (H1zE8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
accumulated provision of impairment loss recognized
on the properties held for sale was RMB 131,622,000
(2023: RMB130,622,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the properties held for
sale of RMB253,000,000 were pledged to secure
against certain long-term bank borrowing (20283:
RMB254,000,000) (note 32).

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

FHEWE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

384,622 384,622
(131,622) (130,622)
253,000 254,000

HE2024F12A31BHLEFE &
HEMERRIAAREBEAAR
# 131,622,000 7T (2023 & : A R #&
130,622,0007T) °

R2024F 128318 » & T RERITHE
A A R #253,000,000 7T 8 1 H £ 4
H{EE IR (20234 - AR®254,000,000
70) (ME32) °

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED 3 EE &0 (F) AR/A7  ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [E %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=g T E S

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

24. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank deposits with initial terms
of over three months (a)
Others (b)

IRITFR()
HAib(b)

As the issuer of the prepaid cards, the Group
should have restricted deposits proportionate
to the prepaid cards issued in a certain bank,
which is required by the PRC regulator. The
balance of restricted deposits for prepaid cards
was RMB12,340,000 as at 31 December 2024
(20283: RMB16,797,000). The effective interest
rate for the restricted deposits of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024 was 1.75%
(20283: 1.80%).

Certain bank deposits were restricted to be
used by the Group due to the legal cases as
disclosed in note 36.

The Group considered that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the balance of bank
deposits. The directors of the Company
considered that the fair value of these bank
deposits approximated their carrying amount as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand

The cash and cash equivalent are denominated in
RMB, USD and HKD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE3E  mE s SER (RE) BRAF

RITMEMTFHERE

24, ZRFIBITER

ERRBEE=EAMN

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
12,340 16,797
= 248
12,340 17,045

EATERNRHEITA » AEBER
BEHhEEERERTENE R
FAEETEMN 2B —HD
TEASZBREITFFR - H2024F 12 A
31H » BN RH R $I11F R4 &
BANREA12 340,0007T (20234
AER¥16,797,0007T) ° # E2024
F12A31BILEFEE » AEBEXR
B TF KA BB FI R 51.75% (2023
F:1.80%) °

AEBEFRITEROEAER -
L Ty e R B RE BB P B A R B
o

AEBERAFRTHFRNEHREGSD
FRERITTEKXN - KRRIEER
BETR2024%F K 2023F12A31H -
ZERTERNAFELEERE
BE -

25. RERREEEY

As at 31 December

A12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
43,091 50,127

BekReSEBYWHUAARE  ETk
AITTEHE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| v_\A H J &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE

PREMIUM
As at 1 January 2024 R2024F181A8

- Disposal of equity investments —FERERR S
As at 31 December 2024 20245128310
As at 1 January 2023 20231810

- Disposal of equity investments —FERERZ S
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%12831A

(@) The application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands. Under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the funds in share premium
account are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

184 SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

26. BAR B0 aE

Number of Ordinary
ordinary share Share
shares capital premium Total
EERHE EERRXK RPEE st
(thousand) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(FR) AR%Tr AR%Tr AR%Tx
(a)
2,495,000 213,908 750,992 964,900
2,495,000 213,908 750,992 964,900
Number of Ordinary
ordinary share Share
shares capital premium Total
LRREA LAREA RVEE st
(thousand) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(FR) AR®Tn AR®TT AR®TR
(a)
2,495,000 213,908 750,992 964,900
2,495,000 213,908 750,992 964,900

(@)

e A EER (hE)

B aERZEAXHASHE AR

REE -

RERSBESQEEA

R EERANES A DIKTAR

AR - HEEBEE

=AY
=

IR B2 B

% ARBARRENXNEERE
X BRTAMAOER -

BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

27. OTHER RESERVES

27. Hibf#E

Currency
Statutory Merger Revaluation translation
reserve reserve surplus reserve Other Total
EERE  AHEE  ERER NERERE Aft £
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR
(@) (o)
As at 1 January 2023 R2023%E1518 156,600 107,372 174,197 (782) 2,385 439,772
Currency translation differences ~ SMEREZE - - - (2,185) - (2,185)
Revaluation of property,
plant and equipment EIRENER N
upon transfer to investment BERZENATE
properties, net of tax Eff (RHE) - - 20,654 - - 20,654
As at 31 December 2023 #2023512A31R 156,600 107,372 194,851 (2,967) 2,385 458,241
Currency translation differences  SMEHEZSE - - - (1,322) - (1,322)
As at 31 December 2024 #2024512A31R 156,600 107,372 194,851 (4,289) 2,385 456,919

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 &3R4  mEFEEE (FF) ARATF

Statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of
the companies comprising the Group which
are incorporated in the PRC. Appropriations to
the reserves were approved by the respective
boards of directors’ meeting. For the entity
concerned, statutory reserves can be used to
make good previous years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into capital in proportion
to the existing equity interests of investors,
provided that the balance of the reserve after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the
entity’s registered capital. In 2024, no earnings
(2023: nil) was appropriated to statutory
reserve.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

(a) FEEREEREETRERAER
ARERBEEMEIOAEEET
BARMMAEZERMAEY - FiE
SERSHEEESTEE LEIE
BB N BERERNS  AER
BURARBEATEFEMNERE(D
) WEAKREEERBRAE
R PIE AR - HREEESRE
rERENVDRZEETIMEERY
25% o FR2024F « BEEEE =X
TEREE (20234 : ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

alln

27. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(b)

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

In preparation for the listing of the shares in
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, certain
reorganisation steps (the “Reorganisation”)
were carried out. After the completion of the
Reorganisation, the Company became the
holding company of the subsidiaries comprising
the Group.

Merger reserve arising from the Reorganization
represents the excess of the paid-in capital
of Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) over
the consideration paid by the Company,
representing the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange thereof.

28. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

186

As at 1 January 2023

27. BEhEE 2

(o)

7A2023F181H

REBARFTBOHREEMER S
FIBRDRERLET  ARAFREHE
TETEAXR(TEA]) - RE
MTERIR - ARRIRAREEET
HiE A RRZER AR

REAEENSHEBIERES R
CRIDMEZRABHARRCH
RENZERE - AIARAITEITIAE
R EE

28. Z5tE#E

RMB’000
ARETT

(296,312)

Loss for the year

As at 31 December 2023

As at 1 January 2024

Loss for the year

As at 31 December 2024

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

FEER

720235128310

R202451818
FEER

7A2024%12A31H

REBEEK (hE) ERAR

(340,982)

(637,294)

(637,294)
(33,764)

(671,058)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [E %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS !
44 B I8 3R % MY & i

For the year ended 31 December 2024 \”'”
EHZE2024F12A31 AL FE

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEARE

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥EFTT

Lease liabilities HERE 561,939 644,113
Less: Current portion of lease 5 : TAE & ERENEAEE S

liabilities (65,331) (53,681)

496,608 590,432

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no items R2024F 12 A31H » KEBEERF A
that were not included in lease liabilities but would HEBEETREBCRAR ML IR
lead to potential cash outflows in the future. H -
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no lease R2024F 128318 » AEBEEDEF
payments of lease contracts that had been signed but BEARBTHHEEGRMNBEENTIE -

had not yet been performed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30.
Notes
bt
Lease deposits HEZS
Other tax payables E b RIE
Accrued wages and salaries A TEERF
Trade payables (i) 2SN FIE (i)
Amount due to a related party N —Z a7 2OE
(Note 35(e)(i) (Bt3£35()(i))
Accrued bank interest and FEEMEFERTTH B & (i)
penalties on borrowings SR (B 7E32(b))
(i) (Note 32(b))
Provisions for losses on legal EED AR RS AR
claims
Rent received from customers K EFHES
in advance
Other payables and accruals E b FE T FRIE &
JEEtE A
()  The aging analysis of the trade payables of the (i)

188

Group based on invoice

0 - 30 days

(i

The bank interest and penalty were accrued for

date is as follows:

TE30K

the outstanding bank borrowing owed by Zhuhai
Xiangyao. The bank borrowing was pledged by
the properties held for sale and was overdue.

(i)

All trade and other payables are denominated

(i)

in RMB/HKD and their fair values approximated
their carrying amounts as at 31 December 2024

and 20283.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE

HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED  mrE B EE (hFE) BRAH

B 5 & H MR

As at 31 December

M12A31H8
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
44,628 53,319
12,460 12,153
3,060 2,446
937 397
4 9
26,394 5,003
5,546 -
11,984 -
43,809 53,450
148,822 126,777

AEBENE S RNRBENEREA

R BRER D ITAT
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
937 397

RITH SR ERE IR RAREE
RITRERMAHR » |RITEKBFH
EVFERREEH -

FIEES REMBENFREBELAR
BB TLEE AR FEEAR
20244 [ 202312 431 BHYfRME
ERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [E %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS !
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 \”'”
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. EHEE

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥EFTT

Advances received from customers (a) ZHREF 8K (a) 19,412 28,058
Deferred income (b) EEHA (b) - 78
19,412 28,136
(@ The amount mainly represented the net () ZEeB|IZAEAEBFEEEMNFEK
amount of advances received from customers mHEk ez R R R HIBTE R

for prepaid cards sold and the accumulated wEOe B2 %EH)ERE o

amount of the reversal of long-aged
unredeemed prepaid cards.

(o)  The amount mainly represented the carrying (b) ZEEIBIERABREBHES ZE
amount of unredeemed awarded credits. HE -
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

32. BORROWINGS

190

Non-current

FEENER

32. B

Secured long-term bank borrowings (a) B K BIRTITER

Current

Current portion of secured long-term
bank borrowings (a) (b) (Note 23)

Secured short-term borrowing (c)

BN A

SR G

As at 31 December 2024, RMB253,334,000
(2023: RMB266,361,000) of secured long-
term borrowing was denominated in RMB, and
secured by certain investment properties (Note
14) and certain receivables from rental income
(Note 21). During the year ended 31 December
2024, the weighted average effective interest
rate was 6.37% (2023: 6.04%) per annum.

Zhuhai Xiangyao’s long-term bank loan
of RMB253,940,000 pledged by the
properties held for sale at the fair value of
RMB253,000,000 (2023: RMB254,000,000)
(note 23). The Bank Loan was expired on 1
November 2023. The final judgement by the
Court has been concluded that the Subsidiary
and third-party guarantors of Bank Loan need
to repay the principal of the Bank Loan and
corresponding interest and penalties. As at 31
December 2024, the principal of the Bank Loan
was RMB253,334,000 and accrued interest
and penalties were RMB26,394,000. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the weighted
average effective interest rate was 8.42% (2023:
5.95%) per annum.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

Eon
A

EEMRIIRITER
BIEAEE S (a) (b) (A/2E23)

(©

(a)

i)

mEAEEk (hE) BRAF

As at 31 December

Mm12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
226,667 63,333
280,607 456,968
50,780 36,172
331,387 493,140
558,054 556,473

R2024F 12 A31H » NEBE A
ARBHENCEBRBAERA
AR #253,334,000F & 7t (2023
F . AR¥266,361,0007T) © &
WA THREDEERR(HFE14)
M€ BABE T &SRR (K
F21) c 2202412 A31H
WEFE NEEFEHEREANEXR
6.37%(2023 : 6.04%) °

REEROERHRTERAAR
#053,940,0007T * ARFEAR
¥ 253,000,000 (20234 : AR
¥ 254,000,0007T ) B9 £ & ¥ %
{ERHR (FI7E23) - RITERER
2023F 11 A1HEIH - ‘A=z EER
BEHR  BRENBRARIRIEITE
HEE=FERAFTEERITER
WA RBEFEMIR - HE
2024F 12 A318 » ZBITEFA
& A AR#253,334,000T © EA
A B K& A AR 26,394,000
JC o Bl E2024F 12 31 H IEF
B MEFHERFEE8.42%
(20234 : 5.95%) °
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Tlf it
For the year ended 31 December 2024 \I
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

32. BORROWINGS (continued) 32. B (&)
(c) Asat 31 December 2024 and 2023, the secured (€) TH2024%F }x2023F 128318 * #%
short-term borrowing was denominated in PHARHERIAAREE - A
RMB, secured by certain investment properties ETHREMEEEE(HE14) -
(note 14) and was repayable within one year. W —FRNEE - B E2024F 12
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the AB1BILFE - METFHEERSF
weighted average effective interest rate was T 56.98% (20234 : 6.52%) °

6.98% (2023: 6.52%) per annum.

(d) At 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank (d) 72024%F12A31H @ XEERIR
borrowings were repayable as follows: TERERATHREER

As at 31 December

m12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Within 1 year 1R 331,387 493,140
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 7 fH 26,667 6,667
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 7 [H] 80,000 20,000

Over 5 years R 5F 120,000 36,666
558,054 556,473

() The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings e WIOTEXMEDMEEELNTEME
approximated their fair values as these = EAAZEESTEATEFHFX

borrowings are mainly floating-rate borrowings.

—

(=
= 7A °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

alln

33. CASH GENERATED FROM

OPERATIONS

(a)

192

Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation (Note 15)

Amortization of intangible
assets (Note 16)

Net impairment losses on

financial assets (Note 9)

Net impairment losses on
prepayments (Note 9)

Net loss/(gain) on disposal

of subsidies

Losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 8)
Provision for properties held

for sale (Note 8)
Fair value changes
on FVPL (Note 20)

Loss for legal claims (Note 8)
Net fair value losses on investment

properties (Note 14)
Interest income (Note 71)

Interest expenses (Note 11)

Gains from modification
of leases (Note 8)

Changes in working capital:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables
Decrease in restricted
bank deposits

Net cash generated

from operations

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

33. KEXBRELENRE

Net cash generated from operations (a)

B ET{S R AT ES 1R
WeEKiF15)
B A EB
(Hia£16)
TRIR AN EERNRE
B8 F 58 (AE9)
B RER R E R R
SRR (H15E9)
HEKB AR
F 18 as
HEME - BENEE
BB (HaE8)
HFREVENERE
(Ha£8)
BAFEFABEN
NEEE) (H:F20)
KERREEMEIE (ML)
REMENFERE
SFRR (A 14)
FBUA (HaE11)
MERZ(HiE11)
BEMHE WS (KE8)

BEeE

e

B 5 R IR RE
B 5 R AT H0B
SR HI BT D

REEBELRN
bR

REBEEK (hE) ERAR

REXBAEENRSFE

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBFIT
(101,258) (406,504)
2,249 3,457
106 175
1,554 204,492

- 62,950
- (7,245)

2,609 121
1,000 96,000
4,350 -
5,546 -
139,483 156,004
(6,779) (18,476)
75,894 68,642
(37,829) (30,593)
283 96
5,418 62,445
(11,497) (85,164)
248 122
81,377 106,522
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

33. CASH GENERATED FROM

OPERATIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE5%E  HE o SEk

In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

Net book amount disposal of

property, plant and
equipment (Note 15)

Losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 8)

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

Debt as at 1 January 2023

Cash flows

Interest expenses on operating
leases as the lessee (Note 11)

Effect of early termination and
modification of leases

Effect of recognition of lease

Debt as at 31 December 2023

Debt as at 1 January 2024

Cash flows

Interest expenses on operating
leases as the lessee (Note 11)

Effect of early termination and
modification of leases

Effect of recognition of lease

Debt as at 31 December 2024

33. REXKFIEENERE &)

(b) RIBEREXRAN G HEYE - FE

BB ZFEHRIERE
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
HEME - HERKEHED
BREDFE(WE15)
3,701 188
HEME - BE&
REREE (A ES) (2,609) (121)
HEME - WE ME#E
T8 58 1,092 67
(c) MEZTHFELAEBZYHE
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
fBR HEAE w@st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR
202351 A1 AMER 586,058 691,846 1,277,904
RERE (29,585) (102,076) (131,661)
EBERALY

MERMBRZ (M) - 33,228 33,228
TRAIARE N B @

HENY - 19,470 19,470
HEERNZ rén - 1,645 1,645
2023 12A31 B NER 556,473 644,113 1,200,586
R2024F1B1BMER 556,473 644,113 1,200,586
Rene 1,581 (89,602) (88,021)
EBERALY

MERBRI (1) - 33,652 33,652
RAIRIERER

MENZE - (26,725) (26,725)
HEERNZ 2 - 501 501
M20245F12A31 BB 558,054 561,939 1,119,993
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. COMMITMENTS 34, EifE

(a) Capital commitments (a)

Significant capital expenditure contracted
for at the end of the reporting period but not
recognized as liabilities is as follows:

Purchases of property, IWWEEM % RE Mkt
plant and equipment

(b) Non-cancellable operating leases - the (b)
Group as the lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts
under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:

Buildings: BF:
Within 1 year 16 R
Between 1 and 2 years 122F 7 fH
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 2 H
Between 3 and 4 years 3E4F 2 [H
Between 4 and 5 years AZE5F 2 [H]
Later than 5 years BiRsF

BAERE

RBEMRETHERERREE
ZEREARFEZNT

As at 31 December

Mm12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBET T

2,254 2,943

2,254 2,943

THHESEEN - FTEBERE
HA

RIBAA L Z2HONRKRE
HEFIRERENT

As at 31 December

Mm12A31H
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

159,925 162,944
121,241 140,678
78,369 101,443
60,678 57,818
46,670 43,332
122,103 118,225
588,986 624,440
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 fE3keE  m= H S (

Parent entities

The Group is controlled by the following entities:

Name

=1

Shirble Department Store
Limited

Xiang Rong Investment
Limited

Type
HA

Immediate parent entity
BEESRAESR
Ultimate parent entity
REGRAER

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong.

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, the
following transactions were carried out with

related parties:

Name

=L

Shenzhen Ruizhuo Investment Development
Company Limited (“Ruizhuo Investment”)

Place of incorporation
B 3L it B

The British Virgin Islands
REBRIAES
The British Virgin Islands
REBREUES

Ownership
interest
mEERER

55.08%

55.08%

AEBZERERTRESER L °

BETETHNR ST

Relationship

M7

A e EERARAA((HERE )

Shenzhen Shengrunfeng Investment &
Development Co., Ltd (“SRF”)

AMREEREZRERABA(TREE])

Ms. ZHU Bi Hui
REEL L

Mr. YANG Ti Wei’s cousin
GRKRERY

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong is the chairlady of the

Board of the Group.

Mr. YANG Ti Wei is the deputy chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Owned in equal shares by Mr. YANG Ti Wei’'s cousins
MG REM A R LB K AR (D % E

Ultimately controlled by Mr. YANG Ti Wei
F 45 R M 5T A R AR AR T

BESRRTR/ARENETFELL -

BRERERAEENESTSRIT

BRI -

27\ SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED
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%= NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

L AlF

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

196

For the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 17, iNKbYES!
Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEBE
Key management includes directors (executive FEEL
and non-executive), members of the Executive ;1T)

Committee and the Company Secretary.
The remuneration paid or payable to key

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

management for employee services is shown

below:

Basic salaries and allowances
Contributions to the
retirement scheme

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

35. BERXRS (&)

EANEBRREF(WITRIE
WMITEZEEME AR

E - EERBCENHENEIRE

BEABRBELT :

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBEFIT

EARFe MR 1,823 1,556
IRIRTEFIET B R

14 14

1,837 1,570

REBEEK (hE) ERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(d)

Transactions with other related parties

The following transactions were carried out with
related parties. The prices for these transactions
were determined in accordance with the terms
of the underlying agreements.

U]

(ii)

Rental expenses paid to related
parties

Ruizhuo Investment IHERE

The Group entered into lease agreements
in respect of certain leasehold properties
with related parties of the Group for
their use as a retail shops and employee
dormitories.

Consideration from disposal of
subsidiaries

Ms. ZHU BIHUI REBLL

35. BERXRS (&)

(d)

HRHEMBEL 2R 5

AT REEETETIRS - %F
R 5 ) BRI IR AR ARRE 17 3% RO IR

B -

() PEESXNZESMX

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

19 19

AEERETHBAMEEAR
SEBESFILZHHEER
& WERTERMLET
BE -

(i) EEMBAIARMNARE

2024 2023
HKD HKD
BT BT
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

198

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

(e) Outstanding balances with related parties

U]

(i)

Amount due to a related party

Ruizhuo Investment

Ine iR E

The outstanding balances with these
related parties are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Amount due from a related party

Non-current portion

Long-term receivables-SRF

(Note 21)

Current portion

Long-term receivables-SRF

FERNER

(Ba£21)

BNER

(Bz£21)

35.

(Note 21)

Less: provision for impairment
loss allowance (Note 3.1(b))

On 8 April 2019, the Group entered into
a consultancy agreement with SRF to
provide property development consulting
services. On 30 December 2020,
the Group entered into a termination
agreement with SRF for the purpose of
terminating the property development
consulting services effective from 30
December 2020.

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

(Bta£3.1(b))

BEIRS &)

(e) EHBEIHNREEBSER

() FENBEESHRE
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
4 9

It FBE T MR E R AR E
EH - B RARERESR -

RERYEFE-REE

REIEKRE-REE

SR EE R R EYE

(i) FEWEESHRE
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
220,529 336,164
115,635 -
336,164 336,164
(336,164) (336,164)

REBEEK (hE) ERAR

MR2019F4A8H » REE R
RELZET B RS EA
REEEHEZREERRS -
M2020%12 4308 » AEE
HRBHLYITYRIERE - 8
2020% 12 A30H B IFE Y
ERREAMRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(e)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F[E£#e mEo sk (PE) BRAH

Outstanding balances with related parties
(continued)

(ii)

Amount due from a related party
(continued)

On 30 December 2022, the Group
entered into a supplemental termination
agreement with SRF to extend the
repayment period to 31 December 2025,
2026 and 2027 with reference to the fact
that the construction progress of SRF’s
project has been slackened and the sales
of the property are less than the original
estimates due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC and a
series of contracting monetary policies
implemented by the PRC government.
The interest on the outstanding amount
will be payable in three installments on 31
December 2025, 2026 and 2027, at the
prevailing benchmark rate for three-year
RMB fixed deposit published by the China
Construction Bank in PRC from time to
time. The outstanding balances with SRF
is unsecured.

On 29 March 2023, the supplemental
termination agreement with SRF
was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in the
extraordinary general meeting subsequent
to the year end date.

35. BERXRS (&)

(e)

B fd

(i)

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

ERNARERERE)

FEWBRE T N RRIE(E

R2022%12 8308 © @RFH
T F A K T 7E P I A IR B
MPBEBRFERN— R E
BEMEBRATE  AEEH
2B HLEEEREEN
ERIF R EEE AKRE
REVmE - BREEET
THAKIERE - BERE
[RiE & &= 2025 ~ 2026 &F
202712 831H - X EES
R F B 145582025 ~ 20264F
M2027F12 A1 A D ZH%
0 FEBEZRPEZERBITE
PRI ZFHAREE
BT ORITH ER K E -
SELZKESLHEEIT
E/\] °

20233 H29H © ERH
ENHAR LR TS
BHRFRIRERERE FEEAR
A EIE B S AR AL o
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35.

36.

200

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BEAXRB (%)

(continued)

(e) Outstanding balances with related parties (e) HBMESMKREBRLHE)
(continued)
(iii) Prepayment and deposit from a (i) BEINEMRERES

related party

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBETT

Prepayment — Ruizhuo AR -ImERE
Investment 943 -
Other receivables — Ruizhuo Hipprl — i EiRE
Investment 112 112
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. AREE
Certain suppliers and an ex-employee have AETHERBLE —ZaEEMEBE LK
commenced legal proceedings in the PRC against IRERAEAGINZEENTREARE
the Group in respect of disputes over contract terms BRMEEFD - B E2024%F 12 A 31
and employment contract terms. As at 31 December B FADEETH - REBEDAErsk
2024, the legal proceedings are ongoing. The Group RBBESELHARET64,0007T (20234
has estimated the amount of contingent liabilities of 12H31H : AR¥2 765,0007T) °

approximately RMB764,000 (31 December 20283:
RMB2,765,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 4 [Z 45

37. KRR EEEBRKFEEE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY ()
(continued)
Balance sheet of the Company 2024 2023
KAREERBR Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARET T ARET T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRZKE 807,553 872,798
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 &EMEWHRIE 464,812 426,836
Cash and cash equivalents HE MRS EEY 12,163 16,148
476,975 442,984
Total assets BMEE 1,284,528 1,315,782
EQUITY xR
Share capital & A 213,908 213,908
Share premium f& iD= E 751,091 751,091
Other reserves HibGE#E (a) 107,881 107,881
Accumulated losses 2518 (@) (472,464) (401,917)
Total equity R 600,416 670,963
LIABILITIES =Ei
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 R E AR 684,112 644,819
Total liabilities waE 684,112 644,819
Total equity and liabilities HMEZNEE 1,284,528 1,315,782

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
the Board of Directors on 28 March 2025 and was

signed on its behalf.

ARRIBEBBERAEEZN202593
AosAHLERB TIEERKESRE -

HUANG Xue Rong YANG Ti Wei
BEEH mEg
Director Director
EF EF

& (hE) BRAAF
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37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

202

(continued)

(a)

Reserve movement of the Company

As at 31 December 2022

Loss for the year

As at 31 December 2023

Loss for the year

As at 31 December 2024

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED BB H & (hE) ARAF

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

R2022%12A31H

EEBR

12023%12A31R

EEER

120245 12R31R

37. ARNREEEBRERERLY

(%)
(a) EABREEEE
Other reserves
HitftE
Capital
Merger  redemption Accumulated
reserve reserve Other Total losses
RHRE EARERE Ht fit ZiEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥Trn ARETR AR¥Tz AR%TR
107,372 410 99 107,881 (225,756)
- - - - (176,161)
107,372 410 99 107,881 (401,917)
- - - - (70,547)
107,372 410 99 107,881 (472,464)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HIEFE

38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ emolument

The remuneration of every director is set out

below:

S

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Name of director

EEng

Executive directors
Mr. YANG Ti Wei
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. CHEN Fengliang

Mr. JIANG Hongkai

Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 S[Zk% e A &

WTES

ELELL
BUKAGES
UL

TRREE
REREE

38. EEREAMKER

(a) EEHM

EEHNSEFTHEFIIWT ¢

HZE2024F12A31HIEEE ¢

Salary Retirement
allowances schemes

Fees and benefits contributions Total
e
we EEREF BRGEHER @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARNWTR ARETRT ARETR

536 1,823 14 2,373
560 - 11 571
173 - - 173
173 - - 173
274 - - 274
1,716 1,823 25 3,564
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

204

(a)

(b)

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of every director is set out
below (continued):

For the year ended 31 December 2023:

Name of director

EEREF

Executive directors HITES
Mr. YANG Ti Wei TaRas
Non-executive director FHUTES
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong HEERARTL

Independent non-executive

directors BIFHTES
Mr. CHEN Fengliang [
Mr. JIANG Hongkal IR SE
Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong L F 5 E

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or
receivable by directors’ services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2023:
nil).

SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

38. EER/AINERS &)

(a)

ESHM(E)

EFETHEESFMEINOT
(&)

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE ¢

Salary  Retirement

allowances schemes
Fees and benefits  contributions Total
we  REREN BARGEMR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETE ARETE ARETR
541 1,556 14 2,111
270 - - 270
270 - - 270
270 - - 270
270 - - 270
1,621 1,556 14 3,191

(b) EZEMAKER

BERNESRUEAERELARAR
HIMB AR EBZ RGN RE
U IR RAR A (20234 « &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F 12 A31 B ILEE

38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no
payments to the directors of the Company as
compensation for the early termination of the
appointment (2023: nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year
(2028: nil).

Consideration provided to or receivable by
third parties for making available directors’
services

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
there were no considerations provided to
or receivable by any third party for making
available the services of a person as a director
of the Company (2023: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there
were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of directors of the Company, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors (2023: nil).

38. EER/AINERS &)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EERRET

HE2024F12A31BIEFE @ 1
E|EANRAEELTHBEIEARR
BIFRERHE(20234F « ) -

EERRS  ZHIESHNERE

i

RARLETIARAREERNE
BEEXBFEREEAEN  ARNE
KSR FEANTMEBDAER KRG
REEBEBHNEARS - THERE
#7(20234F : ) o

RECESHBEREAE=78EH#
RE=HFRBHNKE

HZE2024F12A31HILFE » #
EREMATETARRZESHE
HmAERE = TRERE=FE
UGB (20234 « &) -

FHLUES  RESFEHEER
ESHERRASEACER ¥
EXREMXZZ2ER

HE2024F12A31BILFEE - #
BUARNFIES  ZESEEHZ
FEMNERREERASYHEAZE
o EEFRHEAMR H L HE (2023
F4E)o
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CORPORATE IN

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

HUANG Xue Rong (Chairlady)
(Re-designed from non-executive director to executive
director on 10 April 2024)

YANG Ti Wei (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
CHEN Fengliang

JIANG Hongkai

TSANG Wah Kwong

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

TSANG Wah Kwong (Chairperson)
CHEN Fengliang
JIANG Hongkai

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF
THE BOARD

CHEN Fengliang (Chairperson)
YANG Ti Wei

JIANG Hongkai

TSANG Wah Kwong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE OF
THE BOARD

JIANG Hongkai (Chairperson)
YANG Ti Wei
TSANG Wah Kwong

206 SHIRBLE DEPARTMENT STORE HOLDINGS (CHINA) LIMITED

FORMATION

NCIE=EE

HE

HITES:

BER(EERL)
(R2024F4H10H I TTE F AT BH
TTEE)

B (B ERTRABE)

BMFHTES:
BRI 52
TRF
BENX

EEEETERERES
WK ()

PR I ==
N

ESERTFMNESS

B 55 (/%)
s
LER
B

EE2ETREEES
TER(EE)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

YANG Ti Wei
CHOW Chun Pong, CPA

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHOW Chun Pong, CPA

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountant

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

SQUIRE PATTON BOGGS
Suite 3201

One Island East

Taikoo Place

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

In China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
PingAn Bank

China Merchants Bank

Bank of Communications

Guangdong Huaxing Bank

In Hong Kong
Hang Seng Bank Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-111

Cayman Islands

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE3keE mE A&k (hE)
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RERRX
EIRFE - CPA

NEWE
BIRF + CPA

= EEm

BEF KBRS
MEERTAD
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BEHRIR

ST IE105%
KFRE221E

BBLEREA
HEER R BB
EBHRE
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3201=

ERAERRIT
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FRIRT
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&
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FREHERONBETHAER
BERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-111

Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

MUFG Corporate Markets Pty Limited
Suite 1601, 16/F

Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEADQUARTER IN THE PRC

33rd Floor, Building 1

Shenzhen Development Center

Renmin South Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen
PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEADQUARTER IN HONG KONG

Unit C2, 30/F

TG Place

10 Shing Yip Street
Kwun Tong

Kowloon, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.shirble.net

STOCK CODE
00312.HK
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